

10-06-16 16-MED-03-0247 1238-01 K34778

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

Between The

FREDERICKTOWN EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

And The

FREDERICKTOWN LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION

July 1, 2016

То

June 30, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| ARTICLE I | RECO | OGNITION | 1 |
|-------------|------|---|---|
| | 1.01 | RECOGNITION | 1 |
| | 1.02 | LENGTH OF RECOGNITION | 1 |
| ARTICLE II | PRO | CEDURES FOR CONDUCTING NEGOTIATIONS | 2 |
| | 2.01 | COMMITMENT TO BARGAINING | |
| | 2.02 | REPRESENTATION | |
| | 2.03 | INITIAL BARGAINING SESSION | |
| | 2.04 | WHILE NEGOTIATIONS ARE IN PROGRESS | |
| | 2.05 | NEGOTIATION TIME LIMITS | - |
| | 2.06 | AGREEMENT | |
| | 2.07 | IMPASSE PROCEDURES | |
| | 2.08 | MISCELLANEOUS | |
| ARTICLE III | | PROFESSIONAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE | |
| | 3.01 | DEFINITIONS | |
| | 3.02 | GENERAL PROVISIONS | |
| | 3.02 | PROCEDURE. | |
| ARTICLE IV | 2.02 | BOARD AND ASSOCIATION RIGHTS | |
| | 4.01 | EXCLUSIVE RECOGNITIONFEA | |
| | 4.02 | RIGHT TO ORGANIZE | - |
| | 4.03 | ASSOCIATION LEAVE | |
| | 4.04 | FAIR SHARE FEE | - |
| | 4.05 | BOARD RIGHTS | |
| | 4.06 | CONFERENCE COMMITTEE | |
| ARTICLE V | | COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS | |
| | 5.01 | SALARY INDEX | |
| | 5.02 | SALARY SCHEDULE | |
| | | A. SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE 07-01-2016 | |
| | | B. SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE 07-01-2017 | |
| | | C. SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE 07-01-2018 | |
| | 5.03 | EXTRACURRICULAR SALARY SCHEDULE | |
| | 5.04 | INSURANCE | |
| | 5.05 | SECTION 125 ACCOUNT | |
| | 5.06 | PAYROLL PRACTICES | |
| | 5.07 | SEVERANCE PAY | |
| | 5.08 | TUITION REIMBURSEMENT | |
| | 5.09 | MILEAGE | |
| | 5.10 | BENEFIT REFUND | |
| | 5.11 | STRS PICK-UP | |
| | 5.12 | PLACEMENT ON SALARY SCHEDULE | |
| | 5.13 | EMPLOYMENT OF STRS RETIREES | |
| ARTICLE VI | | LEAVES OF ABSENCE (PAID AND UNPAID) | |
| | 6.01 | SICK LEAVE | |
| | 6.02 | ASSAULT LEAVE | |
| | 6.03 | PERSONAL LEAVE | |
| | 6.04 | EDUCATIONAL LEAVE | |
| | 6.05 | PROFESSIONAL LEAVE | |
| | | | |

TABLE OF CONTENTS CONTINUED.

| | 6.06 | FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE | |
|--------------|--------|---|----|
| | 6.07 | COURT LEAVE | |
| | 6.08 | CHILD CARE LEAVE | |
| ARTICLE VII | | EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES AND CONDITIONS | |
| | 7.01 | INDIVIDUAL CONTRACTS, REGULAR | |
| | 7.02 | INDIVIDUAL CONTRACTS, SUPPLEMENTAL | |
| | 7.03 | SEQUENCE OF CONTRACTS | |
| | 7.04 | SCHOOL CALENDAR | |
| | 7.05 | STANDARDS BASED EVALUATION SYSTEM | |
| | 7.06 | CERTIFICATION/LICENSURE | |
| | 7.07 | TRANSFER AND VACANCY | |
| | 7.08 | REDUCTION IN FORCE | 50 |
| | 7.09 | PERSONNEL FILES | 52 |
| | 7.10 | PUBLIC COMPLAINT PROCEDURE | 53 |
| | 7.11 | ACADEMIC FREEDOM | 55 |
| | 7.12 | ACCESS | 55 |
| | 7.13 | LESSON PLANS | 55 |
| | 7.14 | ADMINISTERING MEDICATION/MEDICAL PROCEDURES | 55 |
| | 7.15 | MEDICAL | 55 |
| | 7.16 | UNIT MEMBERS WITH CONTAGIOUS DISEASES | |
| | 7.17 | CLASS COVERAGE | 57 |
| | 7.18 | CLASS SIZE | 58 |
| | 7.19 | MASTER SCHEDULE | 58 |
| | 7.20 | STUDENTS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS | 58 |
| | 7.21 | LOCAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE | 59 |
| | 7.22 | COLLEGE CREDIT PLUS | 60 |
| ARTICLE VIII | | OTHER PROVISIONS | |
| | 8.01 | CONFLICT WITH LAW | |
| | 8.02 | ENTIRE AGREEMENT | |
| | 8.03 | DURATION | |
| Appendix A | Grieva | nce Report Form | |
| Appendix B | Assaul | It Leave | |
| Appendix C | Person | nal Leave Form | |
| Appendix D | Evalua | ation Forms | |
| Appendix E | Loss o | f Preparation Period Reimbursement Form | 77 |
| Appendix F | Profes | sional Meeting Reimbursement Form | |
| Appendix G | Confei | rence or Workshop Request Form | |
| Appendix H | Applic | cation for Educational Advancement Costs | 80 |
| Appendix I | Medic | al Benefits | |
| Appendix J | | uing Contract Eligibility | |
| Appendix K | Pre-Ob | oservation Conference Form | |

ARTICLE I

RECOGNITION

1.01 RECOGNITION

The Fredericktown Local School District Board of Education (hereinafter referred to as the Board) recognizes the Fredericktown Education Association (hereinafter referred to as the FEA), affiliated with the North Central Ohio Education Association, Ohio Education Association, and the National Education Association, as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative of teachers, tutors, nurses, licensed/certificated librarians, and guidance counselors employed under regular limited or continuing teaching contracts in matters pertaining to wages, hours, terms and conditions of employment and the continuation, modification or deletion of an existing provision of this Agreement. Members of the bargaining unit are hereinafter referred to as unit members.

Substitutes, educational assistants (aides), home tutors, noncertificated employees, principals, assistant principals, supervisors, athletic director with evaluative responsibility and other confidential, supervisory or management level employees as defined in Section 4117.01 of the Ohio Revised Code are excluded from the bargaining unit. The State Employment Relations Board shall determine any questions concerning the composition of the bargaining unit.

1.02 LENGTH OF RECOGNITION

Recognition of the FEA as the exclusive representative of unit members shall be for the term of this Agreement as provided for in Sections 4117.04(A) and 4117.05(B) of the Ohio Revised Code and will continue thereafter until the FEA is successfully challenged or decertified as provided for in Sections 4117.05 and 4117.07 of the Ohio Revised Code.

ARTICLE II

PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING NEGOTIATIONS

2.01 COMMITMENT TO BARGAINING

- A. <u>Scope of Negotiations</u> The Board shall enter into negotiations with the FEA for the purpose of achieving an agreement covering all matters pertaining to or affecting wages, hours, and terms and conditions of employment and the continuation, modification or deletion of an existing provision of the Agreement.
- B. <u>Directing Requests</u> Requests to open negotiations shall be in writing and either sent by certified mail or delivered in person to the receiving party. Board requests shall be directed to the FEA President, and FEA requests shall be directed to the Superintendent. A copy shall be filed with the State Employment Relations Board (SERB) by the initiating party.

The initial request shall be made ninety (90) to one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the expiration of the current agreement. The first session shall be arranged by mutual agreement but shall take place within fifteen (15) days of the request to open negotiations. Such meetings shall not be conducted during the regular school day unless an emergency occurs. Both parties must agree to declare such an emergency.

2.02 REPRESENTATION

- A. <u>Negotiating Teams</u> The Board and the FEA shall be represented by a team of negotiators, not to exceed four (4) members each. Neither party shall have any control over the negotiation or bargaining representatives of the other party. While no final agreement shall be executed without ratification by the FEA and the Board, the parties mutually pledge that their representatives will be clothed with all necessary power and authority to make proposals, consider proposals, and to make concessions in the course of negotiations. All negotiations shall be conducted exclusively between the teams, and in executive session. In addition, each party shall be authorized to admit no more than two (2) observers to each meeting.
- B. <u>Consultants</u> The parties may call upon professional and lay consultants. Such consultants may be used at the discretion of the negotiators. The expense of such consultants shall be borne by the party requesting them.

2.03 INITIAL BARGAINING SESSION

- A. The first bargaining session shall be held for the exchange of fully written proposals and shall establish dates for future sessions.
- B. Once packages are submitted, no new items shall be added unless mutually agreed to.

2.04 WHILE NEGOTIATIONS ARE IN PROGRESS

- A. <u>Progress Reports</u> Periodic written progress reports may be issued to the public provided that any such release shall have the prior approval of both parties.
- B. <u>Reporting</u> Interim progress reports may be made to the FEA by its representatives and to the Board by its representatives. Any information derived from such reports shall not be disclosed to the general public.
- C. <u>Good Faith Negotiations</u> "Good Faith" requires that the FEA and the Board be willing to react to each other's proposals and give reasons. "Good Faith" obligates the parties' representatives to meet at reasonable times to deal with each other openly and fairly in an effort to reach an agreement on those matters being negotiated. The obligation to meet does not compel either party to agree on a proposal or make a concession.
- D. <u>Tape Recording</u> Bargaining sessions may be taped only by mutual agreement.
- E. <u>Information</u> The Board and the FEA agree to supply available public information that is specifically requested and routinely prepared in a timely fashion. All costs of reproduction shall be assumed by the requesting party.

2.05 NEGOTIATION TIME LIMITS

- A. <u>Caucus</u> Upon request, either party may caucus for a reasonable period.
- B. <u>Length</u> Meetings shall not exceed three (3) hours unless extended by mutual agreement.

2.06 AGREEMENT

- A. All tentative agreements shall be reduced to writing and initialed by both parties. Once a tentative agreement is reached, no further discussions shall take place on the issue unless by mutual agreement.
- B. If agreement is reached on all matters being bargained, the tentative agreement shall be reduced to writing and submitted to the FEA for ratification and to the Board for approval. Once ratified, the Board shall take action within sixteen (16) calendar days following the FEA's action. This Agreement shall then be signed by both parties and become binding.
- C. <u>Further Terms of Agreements</u> Any agreement reached and accepted by the FEA and the Board shall supersede any contrary or inconsistent terms contained in any individual unit member contracts hereinafter in effect. All future individual unit member contracts shall be made expressly subject to terms of this Agreement.

2.07 IMPASSE PROCEDURES

A. Pursuant to Section 4117.14(C)(1) and 4117.14(E) of the Ohio Revised Code, the parties have established the following mutually agreed upon negotiations and dispute resolution procedures which supersede the procedures listed in Section 4117.14(C)(2)-(6) and any

other procedures to the contrary. This article does not diminish or preclude the FEA's rights under Section 4117.14(D)(2) of the Ohio Revised Code, provided that the procedures herein have been followed.

- B. If agreement is not reached within sixty (60) calendar days after the initial negotiating session held under this article or forty-five (45) calendar days before the expiration of this Agreement, whichever comes sooner, either party may declare a bargaining impasse. Thereupon, the parties shall jointly request the services of a mediator from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. The mediation period shall terminate on the expiration date of this Agreement, unless the parties otherwise agree.
- C. If there are costs for such service, the costs shall be shared equally by the Board and the FEA.

2.08 MISCELLANEOUS

- A. Upon final approval by both the FEA and the Board, two (2) copies of the total agreement shall be signed by the Board President and the FEA President. Both parties shall retain a signed copy of the final agreement.
- B. The Board shall be responsible for typing the final agreement. The FEA and the Board shall be responsible for duplication and distribution of the agreement to unit personnel and Board members.
- C. All present language unless deleted or modified will be incorporated into a successor agreement at such time a successor agreement is ratified and approved.

ARTICLE III

PROFESSIONAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

3.01 DEFINITIONS

- A. <u>Grievance</u>: A "grievance" is defined as an alleged misapplication, misinterpretation, or violation of only the specific and express written provisions of this Agreement.
- B. <u>Grievant</u>: is a unit member who files a grievance, or in the event of a group grievance, the FEA.
- C. <u>Days</u>: means workdays during the regular school year. During the summer months, "days" means calendar days excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays and administrative non-workdays.

3.02 GENERAL PROVISIONS

- A. <u>Time Limits</u>: The number of days indicated at each level shall be considered maximum, and every effort should be made to expedite the process. The time limit specified may, however, be extended by mutual written or electronic agreement. Failure of the Board to process a grievance within the time limits specified shall permit the grievant to proceed to the next step. Failure of the grievant to initiate the grievance or appeal a decision within the time limits specified shall result in the grievance being deemed waived and void.
- B. <u>Representation</u>: The unit member has the right to have a representative present at any meeting. Such representative may be an FEA representative.
- C. <u>Written Decisions</u>: Except at the informal level, all decisions rendered, at all levels of the grievance procedure, shall be in writing, setting forth the decision and shall be transmitted promptly to all parties.
- D. <u>Reprisals</u>: No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by the Board or any of its agents against any grievant, any representative, any member of the FEA, or any other participant in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation. Similarly, no reprisals of any kind shall be taken by the grievant, his representative of the FEA against the Board, or any of its agents.

3.03 PROCEDURE

- (Step 1) The grievant shall first discuss the grievance with the lowest level administrator who has the authority to resolve the issue. If the issues involve unit members in more than one building, the grievance shall be directly filed with the Superintendent. This meeting shall be on an informal basis.
- (Step 2) If the discussion does not resolve the grievance to the satisfaction of the grievant, the aggrieved may file a written grievance with the building principal within thirty (30) days following the act or condition which is the basis of the grievance. The grievant shall be granted a conference to be conducted within five (5) days after

the immediate supervisor's receipt of the request. The grievant shall be advised in writing of the time, place and date of such conference. The action taken shall be reduced in writing and copies sent to the individual, President of the FEA, and Superintendent.

- (Step 3) If the action taken by the building principal does not resolve the grievance, the aggrieved may appeal in writing to the Superintendent and request a conference. Failure to file such appeal within five (5) days from receipt of the written disposition at Step 2 shall constitute a waiver of the right to appeal. Upon request, a conference shall be conducted by the Superintendent within five (5) days. The Superintendent shall address the grievance, in writing, within five (5) days after the conclusion of the conference. Copies of the written disposition shall be sent to the grievant, building principal, and FEA President.
- (Step 4) If the action taken by the Superintendent does not resolve the grievance, the aggrieved may appeal the grievance to the Board within ten (10) days of receipt of the written Step 3 disposition. The appeal to the Board shall be in writing and filed with the Board Treasurer. The Board Treasurer shall place the item on the agenda for the next regular meeting of the Board. If it chooses to do so, the Board may conduct a special meeting to deal with the situation. The grievant shall be assured the right to present his/her case and argument with representation before the Board.

The Board shall act on the appeal no later than the next regular Board meeting following the Board meeting at which the grievance was received. The Board's action shall be based upon the recommendation of the Superintendent and the arguments presented by or on behalf of the unit member. The Board shall notify the aggrieved in writing of its decision within ten (10) days following the Board meeting during which the decision is made on the grievance. Copies of the action shall be sent to the grievant, building principal, Superintendent, and FEA President.

- (Step 5) If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Step 4, the grievant may request a hearing before an arbitrator. The grievant's request for arbitration shall be made within seven (7) days following the receipt of the disposition of the grievance by the Board. The grievant's request for arbitration shall be by certified mail with return receipt requested to the Superintendent or by hand delivered notice with signature of Superintendent or his/her secretary on notice.
 - A. Such request for binding arbitration of the grievance shall specify the act or condition upon which the grievance is based, the names and addresses of the parties, the contractual clause(s) alleged to have been misapplied, and the remedy sought. Within five (5) days following receipt of the grievant's request for arbitration, the Superintendent (or designee) and the grievant or his/her representative shall attempt to mutually agree on a third party to hear the case. If such mutual agreement cannot be made within five (5) days, the parties may mutually petition the American Arbitration Association (AAA) to provide both parties with a list or lists of names in

which an arbitrator will be selected and notified in accordance with the AAA's Voluntary Labor Arbitration Rules. The party seeking the arbitration shall contact the AAA in order to proceed to final binding arbitration in accordance with the rules/procedures of the AAA.

- B. Once the arbitrator has been selected, he/she shall conduct a hearing on the grievance in accordance with the AAA's Labor Arbitration Rules.
- C. The arbitrator shall hold the necessary hearing promptly and issue the decision. The decision shall be in writing and a copy sent to both parties. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding.
- D. The arbitrator shall not have the authority to add to, subtract from, modify, change or alter any of the provisions of this collective bargaining contract, or add to, detract from, modify the language therein in arriving at his/her decision concerning any issue. The arbitrator shall expressly confine himself/herself to the issue(s) submitted for arbitration and shall have no authority to decide any other issue(s) not submitted.
- E. The cost of the arbitrator and the services of the AAA shall be shared equally.
- F. Any other expenses resulting from the arbitration shall be borne by the party incurring them and neither party shall be responsible for the expenses of witnesses except where it is agreed that such hearing is during a witness's regular hours of employment.

See Appendix A

ARTICLE IV

BOARD AND ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

- 4.01 Exclusive recognition shall entitle the FEA to the following organizational rights:
 - A. Use of designated building bulletin boards in each unit members' lounge and the unit members' workroom for FEA information.
 - B. Right of the FEA President (or designated representative) to make brief announcements at the conclusion of staff meetings.
 - C. Use of the school public address system for FEA meeting/information announcements during non-student contact time.
 - D. Use of staff mailboxes and email for distribution of FEA information.
 - E. The FEA President shall be provided with the agenda, together with public records provided to Board members, of all regularly scheduled and special Board meetings. The Board will send this packet via electronic mail using the district provided (name@fredschools.com) email address. The packet will not include items that are confidential in nature and not subject to disclosure as public records.
 - F. The FEA President shall be provided with the minutes of all Board meetings at no cost to the FEA.
 - G. The FEA shall have the right to use school buildings and facilities during non-school hours without charge for meetings held during the custodian's scheduled work time so long as such meetings do not interfere with other building activities. The FEA shall make arrangements with the Superintendent and/or building principal(s) for such use at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to any proposed meeting(s). The Association shall use the building according to Section 3313.79 of the Ohio Revised Code with no rental charge except reimbursement to the Board for custodial overtime wages.
 - H. A representative of the FEA will be permitted to address the Board at each regularly scheduled Board meeting during the committee reports agenda item.

Except by agreement, the FEA comments will be limited to ten (10) minutes and will not include pending grievances or issues that should be resolved or concern the collective bargaining process.

4.02 RIGHT TO ORGANIZE

All teachers shall have the right to join or not to join any organization for their professional or economic improvement and membership in any organization or payment of dues or fees to any such organization shall not be a condition of employment or continued employment.

4.03 ASSOCIATION LEAVE

The Board will allow an aggregate of six (6) days' Association Leave, with pay, for the express use of conducting FEA business. These days shall include attendance at the OEA Representative Assembly. Such leave shall be automatically granted if verified by the FEA President as being appropriate. No more than two (2) members from the same building (per IRN) may use Association Leave at the same time.

4.04 FAIR SHARE FEE

- A. Right to Fair Share
 - 1. Payroll Deduction of Fair Share Fee

The Board shall deduct from the pay of unit members who elect not to become or to remain members of the FEA a fair share fee for the representation of such nonmembers each school year. (No non-member filing a timely demand shall be required to subsidize partisan political or ideological causes not germane to the FEA's work in the realms of collective bargaining.)

2. Notification of the Amount of Fair Share Fee

Notice of the amount of the annual fair share fee (which shall not be more than 100% of the unified dues of the FEA), shall be transmitted by the FEA to the Board Treasurer on or before September 15 of each year for the purpose of determining amounts to be payroll-deducted, and the Board agrees to promptly transmit all amounts deducted to the FEA.

3. Schedule of Fair Share Fee Deductions

Payroll deduction of such annual fair share fees shall commence on the first pay date which occurs on or after January 15 annually. In the case of unit employees newly hired after the beginning of the school year, the payroll deduction shall commence on the first pay date on or after the later of:

sixty (60) days' employment in a unit position or

January 15

Upon Termination of Membership During the Membership Year

The Board Treasurer shall, upon notification from the FEA that a member has terminated membership, commence the deduction of the fair share fee with respect to the former member, and the amount of the fee yet to be deducted shall be the annual fair share fee less the amount previously paid through payroll deduction. The deduction shall commence on the first pay date occurring on or after forty-five (45) days from the termination of membership.

4. Transmittal of Deductions

The Board further agrees to accompany each such transmittal with a list of the names of the unit members for whom all such deductions were made, the period covered, and the amounts deducted for each.

5. Procedure for Rebate

The FEA represents to the Board that an internal rebate procedure has been established in accordance with Section 4117.09(C) of the Ohio Revised Code and that a procedure for challenging the amount of the representation fee has been established and will be given to each unit member who does not join the FEA and that such procedure and notice shall be in compliance with all applicable state and federal laws and the Constitutions of the United States and the State of Ohio.

6. Entitlement to Rebate

Non-members may apply to the OEA for an advance reduction/rebate of the fair share fee pursuant to the internal procedure adopted by the OEA.

7. Indemnification of Board

The FEA shall indemnify the Board for any costs associated with the Board's compliance with this Agreement. This shall include any litigation costs. The FEA reserves the right to designate counsel to represent and defend the Board. However, this provision shall not prevent the Board from employing its own counsel, at its own expense, to assist in such representation. Furthermore, the FEA agrees that counsel it designates shall accept and act upon the Board's reasonable instructions and recognize his/her primary obligation to his/her client. In no event shall the FEA impose such representation upon the Board as will create or foster a conflict of interests.

4.05 BOARD RIGHTS

Except as specifically abridged, delegated, granted, or modified by a specific and express term of this Agreement, the Board hereby retains its legal authority which shall include, but not be limited to, the right to: determine matters of inherent managerial policy which include, but are not limited to areas of discretion or policy such as the functions of programs of the Board, standards of services, its overall budget, utilization of technology and organizational structure; direct, supervise, evaluate, and hire employees; maintain and improve the efficiency and effectiveness of school operations; determine the overall methods, process, means, or personnel by which school operations are to be conducted; suspend, discipline, demote, or discharge for just cause; or lay off, nonrenew, transfer, assign, schedule, promote, or retain employees; determine the adequacy of the work force; determine the overall mission of the school district as an educational unit; effectively manage the work force; take actions to carry out the missions of the school district; and the Superintendent's right to direct, assign, supervise, evaluate, schedule, and transfer employees. The Board's and the Superintendent's exercise of the foregoing management rights requires neither prior negotiation with nor agreement of the FEA, except as

the foregoing affect wages, hours, terms and conditions of employment, and the continuation, modification, or deletion of an existing provision of the Agreement.

4.06 CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

A. The Superintendent (and/or designated representative) and the FEA agree to establish a Labor/Management Relations Committee to confer on issues of mutual concern.

The purpose of the Committee shall be to aid in communications between both parties. Its procedures shall consist of informal discussions aimed at clarifying issues or answering questions. The discussion held by this Committee shall not be construed as negotiations or as an official decision-making process. The discussions of this Committee shall not result in modifications or additions to this Agreement.

B. This Committee shall consist of representatives of both the FEA and the Board.

The Superintendent and/or designee and the three (3) building principals will serve on the Committee: The FEA President (and/or designee) and one (1) member from each building, selected by the FEA President, will serve on the Committee. The Superintendent (or designee) will chair the Committee.

- C. Either party can request a meeting of the Committee. Arrangements are to be made in advance and an agenda shall be submitted with the request. Matters taken up at the conference shall be limited to those included in the agenda.
- D. The meeting shall be held at times and places mutually agreed upon within seven (7) calendar days after the request. An extension of this timetable may be made if both parties agree.
- E. A joint statement prepared and agreed to by the FEA representatives and the Board representatives will be made at the conclusion of each Committee meeting. The Committee reports will be sent to all concerned parties.
- F. Prior to a building level issue coming to the Conference Committee, the issue must first be raised at the building level with the Building Advisory Committee.

The role of the Building Advisory Committee shall be to improve and to facilitate communications among the staff on matters involving the operation of the school.

The Building Advisory Committee shall be composed of three (3) members, two (2) of whom are current FEA members, who have been employed in the District for at least one (1) year. One (1) Building Advisory Committee member shall be the building's FEA-appointed representative on the Conference Committee. The remaining two (2) members shall be appointed in August by the building principal to serve for one (1) year, with the further understanding that the FEA Executive Committee must approve at least one (1) of these remaining members. The building principal will notify the FEA President in writing of the two (2) appointees by not later than August 15, and the FEA will likewise notify the principal in writing of the FEA-appointed representative on the Conference Committee by not later than August 15.

The Building Advisory Committee shall hold monthly meetings at the request of either party. Their recommendations will be reported at building meetings or through bulletins. Unit members shall be given student-parent handbooks and unit member handbooks each year and may make suggestions for changes in these handbooks through the Building Advisory Committee.

<u>ARTICLE V</u>

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

5.01 SALARY INDEX

| | BA | BA+8 | BA+16 | 150 HOURS | MA | MA+15 | MA+30 |
|---------|--------|--------|--------|-----------|--------|--------|--------|
| Step 0 | 1.0000 | 1.0200 | 1.0350 | 1.0500 | 1.1500 | 1.1800 | 1.2100 |
| Step 1 | 1.0500 | 1.0700 | 1.0850 | 1.1000 | 1.2000 | 1.2300 | 1.2600 |
| Step 2 | 1.1000 | 1.1200 | 1.1350 | 1.1500 | 1.2500 | 1.2800 | 1.3100 |
| Step 3 | 1.1500 | 1.1700 | 1.1850 | 1.2000 | 1.3000 | 1.3300 | 1.3600 |
| Step 4 | 1.2000 | 1.2200 | 1.2350 | 1.2500 | 1.3500 | 1.3800 | 1.4100 |
| Step 5 | 1.2500 | 1.2700 | 1.2850 | 1.3000 | 1.4000 | 1.4300 | 1.4600 |
| Step 6 | 1.3000 | 1.3200 | 1.3350 | 1.3500 | 1.4500 | 1.4800 | 1.5100 |
| Step 7 | 1.3500 | 1.3700 | 1.3850 | 1.4000 | 1.5000 | 1.5300 | 1.5600 |
| Step 8 | 1.4000 | 1.4200 | 1.4350 | 1.4500 | 1.5500 | 1.5800 | 1.6100 |
| Step 9 | 1.4500 | 1.4700 | 1.4850 | 1.5000 | 1.6000 | 1.6300 | 1.6600 |
| Step 10 | 1.5000 | 1.5200 | 1.5350 | 1.5500 | 1.6500 | 1.6800 | 1.7100 |
| Step 11 | 1.5500 | 1.5700 | 1.5850 | 1.6000 | 1.7000 | 1.7300 | 1.7600 |
| Step 12 | 1.5500 | 1.5700 | 1.5850 | 1.6500 | 1.7500 | 1.7800 | 1.8100 |
| Step 13 | 1.5500 | 1.5700 | 1.5850 | 1.6500 | 1.8000 | 1.8300 | 1.8600 |
| Step 15 | 1.6000 | 1.6200 | 1.6350 | 1.7000 | 1.8500 | 1.8800 | 1.9100 |
| Step 20 | 1.6500 | 1.6700 | 1.6850 | 1.7500 | 1.9000 | 1.9300 | 1.9600 |
| Step 25 | 1.7000 | 1.7200 | 1.7350 | 1.8000 | 1.9500 | 1.9800 | 2.0100 |
| Step 27 | 1.7500 | 1.7700 | 1.7850 | 1.8500 | 2.0000 | 2.0300 | 2.0600 |

5.02 SALARY SCHEDULE

| Step | BA | BA+8 | BA+16 | 150 HRS | MA | MA+15 | MA+30 |
|------|--------|--------|--------|---------|--------|--------|--------|
| 0 | 32,758 | 33,413 | 33,905 | 34,396 | 37,672 | 38,654 | 39,637 |
| 1 | 34,396 | 35,051 | 35,542 | 36,034 | 39,310 | 40,292 | 41,275 |
| 2 | 36,034 | 36,689 | 37,180 | 37,672 | 40,948 | 41,930 | 42,913 |
| 3 | 37,672 | 38,327 | 38,818 | 39,310 | 42,585 | 43,568 | 44,551 |
| 4 | 39,310 | 39,965 | 40,456 | 40,948 | 44,223 | 45,206 | 46,189 |
| 5 | 40,948 | 41,603 | 42,094 | 42,585 | 45,861 | 46,844 | 47,827 |
| 6 | 42,585 | 43,241 | 43,732 | 44,223 | 47,499 | 48,482 | 49,465 |
| 7 | 44,223 | 44,878 | 45,370 | 45,861 | 49,137 | 50,120 | 51,102 |
| 8 | 45,861 | 46,516 | 47,008 | 47,499 | 50,775 | 51,758 | 52,740 |
| 9 | 47,499 | 48,154 | 48,646 | 49,137 | 52,413 | 53,396 | 54,378 |
| 10 | 49,137 | 49,792 | 50,284 | 50,775 | 54,051 | 55,033 | 56,016 |
| 11 | 50,775 | 51,430 | 51,921 | 52,413 | 55,689 | 56,671 | 57,654 |
| 12 | 50,775 | 51,430 | 51,921 | 54,051 | 57,327 | 58,309 | 59,292 |
| 13 | 50,775 | 51,430 | 51,921 | 54,051 | 58,964 | 59,947 | 60,930 |
| 15 | 52,413 | 53,068 | 53,559 | 55,689 | 60,602 | 61,585 | 62,568 |
| 20 | 54,051 | 54,706 | 55,197 | 57,327 | 62,240 | 63,223 | 64,206 |
| 25 | 55,689 | 56,344 | 56,835 | 58,964 | 63,878 | 64,861 | 65,844 |
| 27 | 57,327 | 57,982 | 58,473 | 60,602 | 65,516 | 66,499 | 67,481 |

A. Effective July 1, 2016, the BA, Step 0 base salary shall \$32,758. (2% increase)

| r | | | | | | | |
|------|--------|--------|--------|---------|--------|--------|--------|
| Step | BA | BA+8 | BA+16 | 150 HRS | MA | MA+15 | MA+30 |
| 0 | 33,413 | 34,081 | 34,582 | 35,084 | 38,425 | 39,427 | 40,430 |
| 1 | 35,084 | 35,752 | 36,253 | 36,754 | 40,096 | 41,098 | 42,100 |
| 2 | 36,754 | 37,423 | 37,924 | 38,425 | 41,766 | 42,769 | 43,771 |
| 3 | 38,425 | 39,093 | 39,594 | 40,096 | 43,437 | 44,439 | 45,442 |
| 4 | 40,096 | 40,764 | 41,265 | 41,766 | 45,108 | 46,110 | 47,112 |
| 5 | 41,766 | 42,435 | 42,936 | 43,437 | 46,778 | 47,781 | 48,783 |
| 6 | 43,437 | 44,105 | 44,606 | 45,108 | 48,449 | 49,451 | 50,454 |
| 7 | 45,108 | 45,776 | 46,277 | 46,778 | 50,120 | 51,122 | 52,124 |
| 8 | 46,778 | 47,446 | 47,948 | 48,449 | 51,790 | 52,793 | 53,795 |
| 9 | 48,449 | 49,117 | 49,618 | 50,120 | 53,461 | 54,463 | 55,466 |
| 10 | 50,120 | 50,788 | 51,289 | 51,790 | 55,131 | 56,134 | 57,136 |
| 11 | 51,790 | 52,458 | 52,960 | 53,461 | 56,802 | 57,804 | 58,807 |
| 12 | 51,790 | 52,458 | 52,960 | 55,131 | 58,473 | 59,475 | 60,478 |
| 13 | 51,790 | 52,458 | 52,960 | 55,131 | 60,143 | 61,146 | 62,148 |
| 15 | 53,461 | 54,129 | 54,630 | 56,802 | 61,814 | 62,816 | 63,819 |
| 20 | 55,131 | 55,800 | 56,301 | 58,473 | 63,485 | 64,487 | 65,489 |
| 25 | 56,802 | 57,470 | 57,972 | 60,143 | 65,155 | 66,158 | 67,160 |
| 27 | 58,473 | 59,141 | 59,642 | 61,814 | 66,826 | 67,828 | 68,831 |

| 0 | 34,081 | 34,763 | 35,274 | 35,785 | 39,193 | 40,216 | 41,238 |
|----|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| 1 | 35,785 | 36,467 | 36,978 | 37,489 | 40,897 | 41,920 | 42,942 |
| 2 | 37,489 | 38,171 | 38,682 | 39,193 | 42,601 | 43,624 | 44,646 |
| 3 | 39,193 | 39,875 | 40,386 | 40,897 | 44,305 | 45,328 | 46,350 |
| 4 | 40,897 | 41,579 | 42,090 | 42,601 | 46,009 | 47,032 | 48,054 |
| 5 | 42,601 | 43,283 | 43,794 | 44,305 | 47,713 | 48,736 | 49,758 |
| 6 | 44,305 | 44,987 | 45,498 | 46,009 | 49,417 | 50,440 | 51,462 |
| 7 | 46,009 | 46,691 | 47,202 | 47,713 | 51,122 | 52,144 | 53,166 |
| 8 | 47,713 | 48,395 | 48,906 | 49,417 | 52,826 | 53,848 | 54,870 |
| 9 | 49,417 | 50,099 | 50,610 | 51,122 | 54,530 | 55,552 | 56,574 |
| 10 | 51,122 | 51,803 | 52,314 | 52,826 | 56,234 | 57,256 | 58,279 |
| 11 | 52,826 | 53,507 | 54,018 | 54,530 | 57,938 | 58,960 | 59,983 |
| 12 | 52,826 | 53,507 | 54,018 | 56,234 | 59,642 | 60,664 | 61,687 |
| 13 | 52,826 | 53,507 | 54,018 | 56,234 | 61,346 | 62,368 | 63,391 |
| 15 | 54,530 | 55,211 | 55,722 | 57,938 | 63,050 | 64,072 | 65,095 |
| 20 | 56,234 | 56,915 | 57,426 | 59,642 | 64,754 | 65,776 | 66,799 |
| 25 | 57,938 | 58,619 | 59,131 | 61,346 | 66,458 | 67,480 | 68,503 |
| 27 | 59,642 | 60,323 | 60,835 | 63,050 | 68,162 | 69,184 | 70,207 |

C. Effective July 1, 2018, the BA Step 0 base salary shall be \$34,081.00. (2% increase)

| | C C | 0, 1 | | | | G 10 |
|---------|------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|---------|
| | Step 0 | Step 1 | Step 2 | Step 3 | Step 4 | Step 10 |
| | | | | | | |
| GROUP 1 | 0.139 | 0.147 | 0.155 | 0.163 | 0.171 | 0.191 |
| GROUP 2 | 0.108 | 0.113 | 0.118 | 0.123 | 0.128 | 0.138 |
| GROUP 3 | 0.100 | 0.104 | 0.108 | 0.112 | 0.116 | 0.126 |
| GROUP 4 | 0.084 | 0.088 | 0.092 | 0.096 | 0.100 | 0.110 |
| GROUP 5 | 0.072 | 0.076 | 0.080 | 0.084 | 0.088 | 0.098 |
| GROUP 6 | 0.038 | 0.042 | 0.046 | 0.050 | 0.054 | 0.064 |
| GROUP 7 | 0.025 | 0.029 | 0.033 | 0.037 | 0.041 | 0.051 |
| GROUP 8 | 0.012 | 0.016 | 0.020 | 0.024 | 0.028 | 0.038 |

5.03 EXTRACURRICULAR SALARY SCHEDULE

GROUP 9 Class Advisors: (Each salary is to be divided among the advisors in that position.)

| Senior Class | 0.046 |
|-----------------|-------|
| Junior Class | 0.061 |
| Sophomore Class | 0.020 |
| Freshman Class | 0.020 |

| GROUP 1 | GROUP 2 | GROUP 3 |
|--|--|--|
| Head Varsity Football Head Boys' Varsity Basketball Head Girls' Varsity Basketball Head Varsity Volleyball Instrumental Music | Head Girls' Track Head Boys' Track Head Cross Country Head Baseball Head Softball Head Wrestling Strength Coach Head Bowling High School Cheerleading Head Golf | Junior Varsity Football Junior Varsity Basketball Junior Varsity Volleyball Boys' Basketball Program Asst. Girls' Basketball Program Asst. Volleyball Program Asst. Asst. Instrumental Music Yearbook Advisor |
| GROUP 4 | GROUP 5 | GROUP 6 |
| Freshman Football Freshman Basketball Freshman Volleyball Assistant Track Asst. Cross Country Asst. Baseball Asst. Softball Asst. Wrestling | Middle School Football Middle School Basketball Middle School Volleyball Middle School Track Middle School Wrestling Choral Music Director Play Director Musical Director | Middle School Games Manager Cheerleading Asst. |

GROUP 7 GROUP 8

| National Honor Society | Middle School Student Council |
|------------------------|-------------------------------|
| HS Student Council | Science Fair Coordinator |
| | FES Student Council |

5.04 INSURANCE

A. The Board will pay a maximum of 85% of the family plan for married employees and 85% of the single plan for single employees per month towards the cost of benefits to the extent elected by the employee. (It is mutually understood that medical/prescription drug benefits must either both be elected or neither elected). The difference between the Board's contribution and the total premium shall be paid by the unit member using payroll deduction procedures.

Vision Care - present plan

Dental Care - Major Dental Program III

It is mutually understood that the medical/prescription drug, dental, and vision Coverage and benefit levels now in effect will be continued without change for the term of this agreement except to the extend otherwise mutually agreed to by the Board and the FEA or mandated by applicable law.

- B. The Board agrees to provide and pay one hundred percent (100%) of a Twenty Thousand Dollar (\$20,000.00) life insurance policy for all employees.
- C. Medical Plan Benefits

A Comprehensive Medical Benefit Plan with the following annual deductibles will be provided.

| | Network Deductible | Non-Network Deductible |
|--------|--------------------|------------------------|
| Single | \$200.00 | \$500.00 |
| Family | \$400.00 | \$1,500.00 |

The deductible amounts indicated above will apply during a calendar year period and will apply separately to network and non-network services covered under the plan of benefits. For example, amounts paid by a plan participant toward satisfaction of the annual network deductible will not count against the annual non-network deductible, and amounts paid by a plan participant toward satisfaction of the annual non-network deductible will not count against the annual network deductible required under the plan.

Following satisfaction of the deductible amounts shown above, generally, plan participants will be required to pay a portion of covered expenses; however, the portion of plan expenses payable by plan participants beyond the deductible will be subject to an annual out-of-pocket limit as shown in the following table:

| | Network | Non-Network |
|--------|---------------------|---------------------|
| | Out-of-Pocket Limit | Out-of-Pocket Limit |
| Single | \$600.00 | \$1,500.00 |
| Family | \$800.00 | \$3,000.00 |

The portion of covered plan expenses payable by participants beyond the deductible, except as noted below, will be 20% (subject to the annual network out-of-pocket limit) in

the case of services rendered by a network provider. In the case of non-network care, the portion of covered plan expenses payable by participants beyond the deductible will equal 40% (subject to the annual non-network out-of pocket limit) of the reasonable and customary charge for such service. The annual out-of-pocket limits indicated above will apply during a calendar year period and will apply separately to network and non-network services covered under the plan of benefits. For example, amounts paid by a plan participant toward the satisfaction of the annual out-of-pocket limit, and amounts paid by a plan participant toward satisfaction of the annual non-network out-of pocket limit will not count against the annual network out-of-pocket limit.

Certain services rendered by network providers will be payable at 100% under the plan. Charges for covered diagnostic testing performed by a network provider will be reimbursed at 100% by the plan not subject to the network deductible. Charges for qualifying home health care and hospice care services rendered by a network provider will be covered at 100% under the plan without a deductible requirement.

No coverage will be available under the plan in the case of:

- 1. Charges incurred in connection with voluntary sterilization procedures performed by non-network providers.
- 2. Charges incurred in connection with services provided by a non-network skilled nursing care facility.
- 3. Charges incurred in connection with abortions performed by a non-network provider, and
- 4. Charges incurred in connection with any non-medically necessary procedure, including but not limited to preventive care services, performed by a non-network provider.

The number of services eligible for reimbursement during any calendar year under the plan will be limited in the following cases:

- 1. Coverage for outpatient mental health care services will have no limits.
- 2. Coverage for outpatient substance abuse care will have no limits.
- 3. Coverage for outpatient physical therapy services will be limited to a maximum of sixty (60) network or fifteen (15) non-network visits during a calendar year with each visit to a network or non-network provider counted against both the network and non-network annual visit limits.
- 4. Coverage for home health care services provided by a non-network provider will be limited to a maximum of fifty (50) visits during a calendar year with each home health care visit by a network or non-network provider counted against the non-network visit limits.

- 5. Coverage for chiropractic care services provided by a non-network provider will be limited to a maximum of ten (10) visits during a calendar year with each visit for chiropractic services by a network or non-network provider counted against the non-network limits.
- 6. Pre-admission notification is required for all non-emergency hospital admissions. Post-admission notification is required for all emergency hospital admissions. If not received, a penalty of \$200.00 will be applied to the hospital confinement. If the patient is unconscious or unable to follow the requirements of this program due to illness or injury rendering the patient physically or mentally incapable, the penalty will be waived until the patient is able to follow the terms of the program. The Treasurer will decide if a patient qualifies for the waiving of a penalty fee.
- 7. Coordination of Benefits/Non-Duplication of Benefits

This Plan will always either pay its benefits in full or a reduced amount which, when added to the benefits payable by another plan or plans, will not exceed the benefit it would have paid in the absence of other coverage. The non-duplication of benefits shall also apply to the dental and vision care plans effective January 1, 2008.

D. Prescription Drug Plan Benefits

A prescription drug plan will be provided to covered employees with such plan requiring a co-payment of \$20.00 per dispensed prescription in the case of prescribed generic drugs, and a co-payment of \$30.00 per dispensed prescription in the case of prescribed non-generic medications.

Maintenance medication to be purchased through mail order after the first 90 days of usage.

The prescription drug plan will cover prescription contraceptives.

5.05 SECTION 125 ACCOUNT

The Board shall implement an Internal Revenue Code Section 125 plan for all unit members, which the employee share of insurance premium is paid with pre-tax dollars.

5.06 PAYROLL PRACTICES

- A. <u>Association Dues Deductions</u>
 - 1. The Board agrees to deduct from the pay of unit members, dues for "United Education Professions" (UEP) when so authorized in writing by each unit member desirous of having such dues deducted. FEA shall be responsible for the clerical work necessary to present such authorization and list to the Treasurer at no expense to the Board.
 - 2. Individual authorization forms for dues deductions shall be furnished by the FEA.

- 3. Dues deductions shall be transmitted by the Treasurer to the FEA Treasurer as soon as possible after deductions are made.
- 4. Dues deduction authorizations shall be filed annually prior to October 1. The deductions shall be made in twenty (20) consecutive installments, beginning with the first pay as agreed to by the Treasurer and the FEA President.
- 5. If a unit member is hired after October 1, a dues deduction authorization may be filed no later than February 15. The deductions shall be made in installments, over the pays that remain in that school year.
- 6. The right to refund to unit members monies deducted from their pay shall lie solely with FEA. The FEA agrees to reimburse any unit member directly from FEA treasury for the amount of any dues deducted by the Board and paid to FEA whenever the deduction is in excess of the proper deduction, and agrees to hold the Board harmless from all claims of insufficient or excessive dues deductions.
- 7. Upon receipt of the "Continuing Membership Enrollment Form" (provided by FEA), dues deductions for the (UEP) shall be continued from year to year until the Board Treasurer is notified in writing that the individual unit member no longer wishes to participate in the continuing membership program. The withdrawal of continuing membership must be done between the first contracted day of the school year and September 20 of that year. The Board Treasurer shall notify the FEA President of any such withdrawals.
- 8. If for any reason the Board fails to make a deduction for any unit member as above provided, Board shall make an additional deduction from the unit member's next pay in which such deduction is normally deducted after the error has been called to the Board's attention by the unit member.

B. <u>Other Payroll Deductions</u>

Unit members shall have the opportunity to authorize payroll deductions: (1) the FEA Scholarship Fund; (2) annuities; (3) OEA Fund for Children and Public Education; (4) credit union; (5) United Way; and/or such other purposes mutually agreed to between the Board and FEA or as required by law.

C. <u>Pay Periods</u>

- 1. Unit members will be paid in 24 equal pays on the 5th and the 20th of each month. If the 5th or the 20th falls on the weekend or holiday then employees will be paid on the preceding business day of the weekend or holiday.
- 2. A year-long supplemental will be paid in three (3) equal installments, the first on the last payday in October, the second on the last pay day in February, and the third on the last payday in May.

3. A seasonal supplemental will be paid in two equal installments, the first on a regularly scheduled payday after half the duties have been performed and the second on a regularly scheduled payday after all the duties have been performed.

D. <u>Record of Accumulated Leaves</u>

The Treasurer will provide each unit member with information pertaining to accumulated leave and other information concerning compensation, a minimum of once each month on the unit member pay notice.

E. <u>Direct Deposit</u>

All unit members will be paid by electronic direct deposit. Pay notices will be furnished to employees electronically to the email address provided by the employee.

5.07 SEVERANCE PAY

Unit members may, at the time of retirement from service with the District, elect to be paid in cash for one-fourth (1/4) of the value of their accumulated sick leave. Unit members employed for the 2007-08 school year and thereafter shall have at least ten (10) years of service in the District at the time of service retirement under STRS to be eligible for severance pay. Only those unit members whose effective date of STRS service retirement is no longer than ninety (90) calendar days after the last paid day of service with the District shall be eligible for severance pay.

Severance pay shall be made only once to any unit member. Thus, should a unit member have received severance pay from another political subdivision of the State of Ohio, the unit member is not eligible for additional severance pay by this Board.

If the unit member should die while employed by the District, his/her severance pay shall be paid to his/her beneficiary as named on the District life insurance policy. Severance pay shall be calculated in accordance with this provision.

Severance shall be paid by the Board Treasurer according to the following schedule:

thirty percent (30%) on the first regular pay following the effective date of retirement; and

seventy percent (70%) on the first regular pay in January in the year following the effective date of retirement.

5.08 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

A. Upon approval of the Superintendent, the Board will reimburse unit members for course work. Course work must be taken from an institution accredited by the Ohio Board of Regents or other recognized accreditation agency. Reimbursement will not exceed three hundred dollars (\$300.00) per semester hour or two hundred fifty dollars (\$255.00) per quarter hour. No reimbursement will be provided unless the unit member receives a grade of B or better in the course(s) or S in the case of S/U grading scale.

- B. All proposed course work from a four-year college or graduate school must be part of an approved, accredited program as verified by a university or college advisor and the Superintendent. This program, if approved by the Superintendent, must relate to the unit member's assigned teaching and/or related area of responsibility in the District or must be necessary for successful completion of the unit member's individual professional development plan (IPDP).
- C. The request for approval form and requisition may be obtained from the Superintendent's office. The request for approval must be submitted prior to the first class meeting for which the approval form and requisition is being submitted. There is a limit of three (3) semester hours or three (3) quarter hours for any one approval request form and requisition submitted. Based on available monies, up to three (3) semester hours will be reimbursed for courses taken first semester, second semester, and summer semester. In the case of quarter hours, up to three (3) quarter hours will be reimbursed for courses taken first semester.
- D. If a unit member takes more than three (3) hours per term, he/she can submit a separate approval request form and requisition prior to the first class. These additional hours may be reimbursed at the end of the fiscal year if budgeted monies are still available. Reimbursement for these requests will be made not later than October 31 and will be calculated by dividing the budgeted monies remaining, if any, by the number of hours requested, if any, up to the caps appearing in A of this Section. Requests will be considered only if the course work was started by not later than the immediately preceding June 30 and documentation of eligibility is submitted to the Board Treasurer by not later than September 30.
- E. Unit members must submit evidence of satisfactory completion of the course taken and fees paid. Reimbursement for summer courses will only be made to unit members who are under contract in the District the following school year.
- F. The Board agrees to appropriate \$27,500.00 per school year. The FEA President will be given a quarterly report of the fund's balance. Employees who receive tuition reimbursement during their first year of employment and who leave the district at the end of that first year for reasons other than termination, RIF, or non-renewal shall repay the district.
- G. Unit members on educational leave shall not be eligible for tuition reimbursement.
- H. Tuition will be prorated in accordance with the unit member's full-time equivalency.
- I. If the unit member's educational institution offers the option of pre-certification of payment by the Board, it is the unit member's responsibility to submit all necessary forms to Treasurer's office and the institution.
- J. A unit member who obtains a master's degree or doctorate in his or her content area of license/certification or earns a reading endorsement will be reimbursed for the full cost of tuition per quarter or semester hour to obtain this degree or program. A teacher may get this full reimbursement under the following conditions:

- 1. For course work started and degrees earned or programs started after July 1, 2016;
- 2. For hours completed while employed by the Board;
- 3. For a maximum of 30 semester hours or its equivalent; and
- 4. For hours completed within two (2) years before the degree was awarded or program completed.

A unit member who already has been partially reimbursed for any such hours will receive the difference between full and partial reimbursement. Reimbursement will be paid within thirty (30 days after the teacher files valid proof with the treasurer.

A unit member receives master's or doctorate tuition reimbursement and leaves the District within less than two (2) years for reasons other than death, termination, RIF or non-renewal shall repay the District for any reimbursement that exceeds the caps per quarter or semester hour.

5.09 MILEAGE

The mileage reimbursement will be at the current Internal Revenue Service (IRS) allowance per mile for the required, authorized use of a personal vehicle in the performance of any school related activity(ies).

5.10 BENEFIT REFUND

The Board wishes to encourage unit members to utilize personal and sick leave only when absolutely necessary. Therefore, a bonus benefit refund for use of one (1) day or less of sick leave and/or personal leave during the 12-month period (July 1 through June 30) may be requested at the end of the school year (July 1 to June 30).

If requested, a bonus benefit refund equal to \$100.00 (less tax and withholding deductions) for non-use of sick and/or personal leave, or \$50.00 (less tax and withholding deductions) for use of only one (1) day of sick and/or personal leave shall only be reimbursed to unit members who work five (5) or more hours per day. Such reimbursement shall be made with the June paycheck of the 12-month period (July 1 through June 30). Part-time unit members shall receive a prorated payment in proportion to their contract terms.

Personal Leave Benefit Refund Schedule

0 days used, \$100.00 1 day used, \$50.00

Sick Leave Benefit Refund Schedule

0 days used, \$100.00 1 day used, \$50.00

5.11 STRS PICK-UP

The Board agrees to continue to "pick-up" unit members STRS retirement contributions utilizing the salary reduction method that triggers no additional cost to the Board:

- A. The amount to be "picked-up" on behalf of each unit member shall be the current approved STRS unit member contribution rate. The unit member's annual compensation shall be reduced, at no cost to the Board, by an amount equal to the amount "picked-up" for the purposes of state and federal tax only.
- B. The "pick-up" percentage shall apply uniformly to all unit members.
- C. No unit member shall have the option to elect a wage increase or other benefit in lieu of the employer "pick-up."
- D. Payment for all paid leaves, sick leave, personal leave, severance and supplementals including unemployment and workers' compensation shall be based on the unit member's daily gross pay prior to reduction as basis (e.g., gross pay divided by the number of days in a unit member's contract).

Each unit member will be responsible for compliance with Internal Revenue Service salary exclusion allowance regulations with respect to the "pick-up" in combination with other tax deferred compensation plans.

If the foregoing "pick-up" provisions are nullified by subsequent Internal Revenue Service Rulings, Ohio Attorney General Opinions, or other governing regulations, the Board will be held harmless and this section shall be declared void.

5.12 PLACEMENT ON SALARY SCHEDULE

When a teacher completes sufficient additional semester/quarter hours of college training to qualify for a higher classification within teachers' salary schedule and files with the Superintendent's administrative secretary both a letter requesting horizontal movement on the schedule and a transcript of college credits or other valid proof of such completed semester hours to the District Treasurer, on or before the 15th of September of the first (1st) semester or January 20 of the second (2nd) semester, the teacher shall then qualify for the higher classification beginning with the first day of either the first or second semester.

MA = Teachers who have earned a master's degree.

MA + 15 and MA + 30 = master's degree plus fifteen (15) or thirty (30) semester hours, or equivalent. Accumulation of "plus" credit hours must begin after the awarding of the master's degree.

5.13 EMPLOYMENT OF STRS RETIREES

 A. This Section governs the terms and conditions of employment of any superannuate or "other system retirant" (as those terms are statutorily defined for purposes of Section 3307.35 of the Ohio Revised Code) the Board may regularly employ, after the application of Section 7.07 of this Agreement, in a position that falls within the description of the bargaining unit appearing in Article I, Section 1.01 of this Agreement. Except as otherwise specified below, any such employee will become a bargaining unit member upon employment and be subject to the provisions of this Agreement.

- 1. For initial placement purposes on the unit members' salary schedule, the employee will receive horizontal and vertical credit in accordance with the normal rules, with the further understanding that in no event will the employee receive more than ten (10) years of vertical credit unless otherwise specified by the Superintendent case by case.
- 2. The employee will receive a one-year limited contract of employment (if employed after the start of the school year, such contract will be for the remainder of that school year). If subsequently reemployed, the employee will be awarded successive one-year limited contracts. In no event will the employee qualify for a continuing contract or a multi-year limited contract.
- 3. The Board is under no obligation to employ any retired professional staff member and, further, there is no expectation of continued employment or re-employment when a professional staff member retires from the Fredericktown Local School District.

If the position is going to reoccur for the following year, the position will be posted by March 1st. Retired employees will have the opportunity to reapply for said position, but are not guaranteed a rehire.

- 4. Upon employment, the employee will be credited with zero (0) years of seniority and thereafter will not accumulate seniority for any purpose under this Agreement.
- 5. The employee is not eligible to participate in any insurance fringe benefits offered under Article V, Section 5.04 of this Agreement unless the employee is precluded by STRS policy from participating in insurance fringe benefits furnished by STRS.
- 6. The employee will in no event qualify for tuition reimbursement under Article V, educational leave under Article VI, or severance pay under Article V of this Agreement.
- B. The provisions of this Section supersede and prevail over any inconsistent terms that may appear elsewhere in this Agreement or in any part of the Ohio Revised Code.

ARTICLE VI

LEAVES OF ABSENCE (PAID AND UNPAID)

6.01 SICK LEAVE

- A. A unit member shall be entitled to fifteen (15) days of sick leave, with pay, for each year he/she is under contract. Sick leave is credited at the rate of one and one-fourth (1 ¼) days per month. After ten (10) consecutive workdays of absence due to personal illness unit members will be required to provide a written statement from a doctor indicating that the unit member had been under his/her treatment. Unit members using sick leave for personal illness may be disqualified from sick leave if found by the Board to be using such leave for the purpose of other employment during the school day. The Board's action is subject to the grievance procedure beginning at Step 3.
- B. Unused sick leave may be accumulated up to a maximum of two hundred forty (240) days effective July 1, 2010. Newly employed unit members may transfer up to that number of accumulated and unused sick days from another public employer in this state if that date of termination of the other employment was less than ten (10) years prior to employment in this District.
- C. Unit members who render part-time service shall continue to be credited with sick leave for time actually worked at the same rate as full-time employees notwithstanding the formula appearing in Section 3319.141 of the Ohio Revised Code that would otherwise apply if this provision were not in effect. Substitute teachers shall not earn, accumulate, or use sick leave until they have served sixty (60) days in the same assignment and go on contract.
- D. A unit member who has no accumulated sick leave will be advanced unearned sick leave up to fifteen (15) days when such an advancement is necessary. Any such advanced sick leave credit will be charged against the subsequent accumulation of that member or against any monies due at separation of service. This would apply to a voluntary departure not a RIF or death of the member.

Subsequent advancements must be applied for and may be granted by the Superintendent to a maximum of fifteen (15) additional days.

- E. Sick leave may be used for absence necessitated by personal illness or injury, including any disabling condition caused by pregnancy, by exposure to a communicable disease, or by illness, injury, or death in the unit member's immediate family, as defined herein.
- F. For purposes of illness or injury, immediate family shall be defined as the unit member's parent, sibling, spouse, child, in-laws bearing any of these relationships, or any dependent living in the unit member's household.
- G. A unit member may use up to five (5) days of accumulated sick leave each school year for purposes of illness or injury of an aunt, uncle, grandparent, grandchild, or in-laws bearing any of these relationships. Additional time may be approved in this category if the unit member's absence from work is necessitated by the relative's illness or injury.

- H. For purposes of death, immediate family shall be defined as the unit member's parent, spouse, child, sibling, grandparent, grandchild, aunt, uncle, in-laws bearing any of these relationships, or any dependent living in the unit member's household.
- I. Absence for a portion of a day up to one-half (1/2) day shall result in a one-half (1/2) day deduction. Absence for a portion of a day greater than one-half (1/2) day shall result in a one (1) day deduction.
- J. A unit member is required to notify his/her immediate supervisor as soon as possible after becoming aware of the need to use sick leave.
- K. All unit members will submit sick leave requests electronically. No sick leave payment shall be made until the required form is submitted. Falsification of any information on the form shall constitute grounds for termination of the unit member's contract.

6.02 ASSAULT LEAVE

In accordance with Section 3319.143 of the Ohio Revised Code, assault leave shall be provided to a unit member who is absent from his/her assigned duties because of physical injury resulting from an assault. The leave shall not be charged against sick leave or any other form of leave. The unit member shall be maintained on full pay status during such absence. See Appendix B.

A unit member shall be granted assault leave according to the following rules:

- A. The incident, resulting in the physical disability of the unit member, must have occurred during the course of employment with the Board.
- B. Upon notice to the principal or immediate supervisor that an assault upon a unit member has been committed, any unit member having information relating to such assault shall, as soon as possible, prepare a written statement embracing all facts within the unit member's knowledge regarding said assault, sign said statement and present it to the building principal or immediate supervisor.
- C. If the unit member is absent from his/her assigned duties due to the physical disability, a certificate from a licensed physician, stating the nature of the disability and its duration, will be required before assault leave payment is made.
- D. A unit member shall not qualify for payment of used assault leave until the Assault Leave form has been submitted.
- E. The unit member shall not be permitted to accrue assault leave.
- F. Payment shall be discontinued when the unit member elects to retire or is no longer under contract with the Board.
- G. Falsification of either a signed statement or a physician's certificate is reason for termination of employment under Section 3319.16 of the Ohio Revised Code.

H. A unit member shall be entitled to a maximum of fifty (50) days of assault leave.

6.03 PERSONAL LEAVE

A maximum of three (3) days of personal leave shall be available each school year to each unit member. Personal leave is to be used to do things which only could be done on that particular day or time. See Appendix C.

Personal leave will be prorated for a unit member who is hired after the start of a work year or who is on approved unpaid leave for part of a work year. Should a unit member sever employment for any reason prior to the end of a work year, the employee's entitlement to personal leave for that work year will also be prorated and if, prior to the severance date, the employee has already used personal leave in excess of such prorated amount, the Board will recoup such excess cost through payroll deduction.

Personal leave is to be used in accordance with the following provisions:

- A. Written request on the form, as herein incorporated, must be given to the principal for acknowledgement and to the Superintendent at least five (5) days prior to the requested date, except in emergencies. In emergency situations, the form shall be submitted as early as possible.
- B. Personal leave shall be used in one-half (1/2) or one (1) day increments.
- C. Approved personal leave shall be at regular pay.
- D. Personal leave may not be accumulated from year to year.
- E. The personal leave shall require a signed certification that the leave will not be used for seeking or engaging in gainful employment.
- F. Except in special circumstances, which must be explained in writing, personal leave shall not be used to extend a holiday or vacation period.
- G. Personal leave will be approved provided that all provisions of this section have been met.
- H. However, no more than five (5) percent of any building may use personal leave on a given day except by prior agreement when a position can be covered with a substitute.

6.04 EDUCATIONAL LEAVE

After five (5) years of employment in the District, a leave may be granted by the Board for up to one (1) year for the purpose of educational betterment or continued training in the field of education. The following provision will apply:

A. A unit member must submit, in writing, a plan for professional growth to the Superintendent, prior to permission being granted, and, at the conclusion of the leave, provide written evidence that the plan was followed.

- B. Leaves will be granted at the beginning of a semester or at other times, but only if a suitable substitute is available.
- C. A unit member on educational leave must inform the Superintendent, in writing, of the unit member's intention to return to active service. Failure to submit this written intent prior to April 10 of the year preceding the school year of the unit member's return shall forfeit the unit member's right to return to the District.
- D. Only one (1) extended leave of absence will be granted every five (5) years.
- E. Extended leave of absence shall be limited to a maximum of one (1) unit member at any time.
- F. Educational leave shall be granted without regular pay.
- G. The unit member shall have the right to maintain, in force, health and life insurance benefits, pending approval and conditions of the carrier(s) involved. The unit member shall pay 100% of the premiums directly to the Board Treasurer by the 1st of each month. Failure to pay such premiums by the 1st of each month shall void the unit member's right to maintain insurance benefits for the duration of his leave.
- H. The unit member shall return to the District upon completion of the educational leave.

The Superintendent shall attempt to reinstate the unit member to that unit member's original position or comparable position upon return to service from educational leave.

I. A unit member on educational leave shall not be eligible for tuition reimbursement.

6.05 PROFESSIONAL LEAVE

- A. Subject to the availability of funds appropriated for this purpose, unit members may obtain professional leave. Leave may be taken for meetings, workshops, visitations, conferences and clinics pertaining to a unit member's field.
- B. A unit member applying for leave shall submit a written request to the principal at least ten (10) workdays in advance of the activity, if possible. The request shall be made on forms provided by the Board and shall state the nature of the event, the dates when attendance is requested, where the event is to occur, a list of anticipated expenses (including fees, room, meals and travel), the name of the unit member and the date the request is submitted. No leave may be taken without the advance approval of the Superintendent (or designee).
- C. Approval to attend such meetings shall include payment of the unit member's salary while in attendance and verified expenses within the budget established when the request was approved. Requests for reimbursement shall be submitted to the Treasurer within five (5) workdays after the unit member's return from leave. Receipts for room, meals, fees, and miscellaneous expenses shall be attached to the request for reimbursement. See Appendix G, pg. 77.

D. Upon request, a unit member shall report on the activity attended to other unit members and/or members of the administration.

6.06 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

The Board will comply with all provisions of the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) of 1993. For purposes of family leave benefits, the twelve (12) month period shall be defined as a rolling twelve (12) month period measured backward from the date that the employee goes on leave.

All unit members will be provided written information explaining their rights and obligations under the FMLA.

6.07 COURT LEAVE

A unit member called for jury service or subpoenaed as a witness in a court action where neither the unit member nor the FEA is a party shall be excused from work for the days on which he/she serves, and shall receive for each such day on which he/she otherwise would have worked the per diem rate of pay. The unit member will submit a statement of attendance and reimbursement as authorized and issued by the Clerk of Courts to the Superintendent (or designee) as proof of such service. The unit member will communicate with the principal daily to apprise him/her of the expected duration of the absence.

6.08 CHILD CARE LEAVE

- A. Child care leave shall be defined as a Board-approved leave without salary or Board-paid (including partially Board-paid) fringe benefits.
- B. The individual contract of any unit member on an unpaid leave shall continue during the period of leave, and shall therefore be subject to renewal, non-renewal, or suspension as otherwise provided by law.
- C. All requests for unpaid leave must be submitted, in writing, to the Superintendent. The request shall include the purpose and the proposed starting and ending dates of leave.
- D. Requests for child care leave shall be submitted as far in advance of the requested leave date as possible. The minimum advance notification will be ninety (90) calendar days, except in the case of an impending adoption. In the case of an adoption, the unit member shall notify the Superintendent in writing at the time his/her application has been approved, and shall provide as much notice as possible prior to the assumption of custody and the beginning of the leave.
- E. The Superintendent may waive the advance notice requirement in special or unusual circumstances.
- F. Child care leave will not be approved for any period that begins prior to the unit member's completion of one (1) year of employment in the District. This requirement may be waived in emergency situations upon application by the unit member.

- G. The maximum length of a child care leave shall be for the remainder of the school year in which it begins and the next succeeding school year. A unit member may not return from a child care leave except at the beginning of a school semester, unless special permission is granted in writing by the Superintendent.
- H. If all requirements of this Section are met, the unit member's request for child care leave will be approved.
- I. A unit member may continue to participate in District group insurance programs only if he/she is willing to assume the full cost of such coverage. Such payments shall be made in advance by the unit member in the manner prescribed by the Treasurer's office.
- J. Use of leave for a purpose other than that stated in the approved leave request shall constitute grounds for termination of the unit member's contract.
- K. Time spent on approved leave shall not count towards seniority. Time spent on an approved leave shall not count toward salary schedule increments or retirement. An approved leave shall not be considered an interruption of continuous service for the purpose of determining seniority.
- L. Upon the expiration of leave, the unit member shall assume the contract status held at the time the leave was granted, including any modification of that status arising out of B above. Returning unit members will be assigned to a position for which they are properly licensed/certified.

ARTICLE VII

EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES AND CONDITIONS

7.01 INDIVIDUAL CONTRACTS, REGULAR

All unit members employed to perform regular duties by the Board shall receive written contracts. The contract shall include:

- A. Name of unit member;
- B. Name of Board;
- C. Type of contract, i.e., limited or continuing. A limited contract will include the length of the contract.
- D. Annual regular salary to be paid and the basis used to determine the amount:
 - 1. Said information shall apply only for the initial year on a multi-year or continuing contract. Thereafter, this information will be included on the annual salary notification during the term of the contract; and
 - 2. Such information shall apply for each limited contract.
- E. Signature of the Board President, Board Treasurer, and unit member;
- F. In addition to the regular contract, unit members shall receive the following:
 - 1. Unit members under contract shall be notified of their tentative assignment by the end of the present school year.
 - 2. Salary notices shall be given to unit members under continuing contract no later than July 10 by Superintendent (or his designee).
- G. A unit member is presumed to have accepted employment unless he/she notifies the Board in writing to the contrary on or before the first day of June.

7.02 INDIVIDUAL CONTRACTS, SUPPLEMENTAL

- A. All unit members paid to perform extracurricular or supplemental duties shall be given written supplemental contracts, in addition to their teaching contract. The supplemental contract shall include the following:
 - 1. Name of unit member;
 - 2. Name of Board;

- 3. Duration of contract and time period in which supplemental duty is to be performed;
- 4. Title of the supplemental duty;
- 5. The amount of pay, basis of pay, and pay periods;
- 6. Signature of the Board President, Board Treasurer, and the unit member.
- B. The Board will give first consideration for supplemental positions to qualified unit members who meet the stated minimum qualifications, as stipulated in the job description. Posting and filling of supplemental positions shall be in accordance with Article VII, Section 7.07 of this Agreement.
- C. Any unit member who applies for a supplemental position but is not selected may request in writing a meeting with the Superintendent and the unit member's immediate supervisor. At such meeting, the Superintendent shall discuss his/her rationale for such recommendation. The affected unit member and the administration shall have the right to representation at such meeting.
- D. Job descriptions shall be provided to each supplemental contract holder at the time he/she is provided his/her supplemental contract.
- E. If the Board approves a supplemental contract prior to June 1 of any year, a unit member is presumed to have accepted such employment unless he/she notifies the Board, in writing, to the contrary on or before the first day of June. Acceptance of a supplemental contract shall be voluntary.
- F. Supplemental contracts will be nonrenewed annually, effective June 30, and will require neither Board action nor notice for nonrenewal. However, if a unit member is not offered the supplemental contract for the subsequent year, the reason(s) for such decision will be identified in writing and provided to the unit member within five (5) workdays of the Board action where the contract is not offered for the following year. The evaluation process must be considered by the Board in making a decision not to offer the supplemental contract for the following year.
- G. All supplemental contract holders shall have all pay (in accordance with Article V, Section 5.03), duties and qualifications (in accordance with the job description) of the extracurricular and/or supplemental position(s) spelled out in the supplemental contract.
- H. Prior service in any school district for the same or similar supplemental contract position shall be credited for placement of a unit member on the extracurricular salary schedule up to step four (4). Only in-district service shall count toward steps beyond step four (4).
- I. Each head coach shall meet with the athletic director at the midpoint of each season. The meeting shall be for the purpose of providing feedback on the coach's performance. All coaches shall be evaluated at the end of the season.

7.03 SEQUENCE OF CONTRACTS

Limited Contract

- A. The sequence of limited contracts shall be:
 - 1. One (1) year, upon initial employment;
 - 2. One (1) year, upon reemployment, for the second contract;
 - 3. Two (2) years, upon reemployment, for the third contract;
 - 4. Three (3) years, upon reemployment, for the fourth contract;
 - 5. Four (4) years, upon reemployment for all succeeding contracts.
- B. If a unit member is not on paid status for at least one hundred twenty (120) workdays during a particular school year, that year shall not count for purposes of this section, and the employee's limited contract shall automatically be extended for an additional year. The Board shall provide written notice of this extension to the effected unit member and the FEA President by July 1 following the particular school year. This section shall not be construed to impact the calculation of a unit member's seniority.
- C. Any unit member on or eligible to receive a multi-year contract may be offered a contract of less duration based on reason(s) that have been identified in the evaluation process between the unit member and his/her evaluator(s) in accordance with the adopted evaluation procedure.
- D. Any unit member on limited contract who resigns or retires and returns to service at a later time must begin the contract sequence with a one-year limited contract as in A. 1.

Continuing Contract

- A. To be considered for reemployment under a continuing contract to be effective at the start of the next school year, a unit member must file written notice with the Superintendent, by not later than January 1 of the school year in which such consideration is sought, that the employee will have met all applicable eligibility requirements (see Appendix J for a description of the service and professional credential/course work requirements) by not later than April 1 of that year. If such notice is not received by January 1, consideration will be deferred until the following school year.
- B. If the unit member's notice to the Superintendent is received in a school year other than the final year of a multi-year limited contract, the above procedure will apply with the further understanding that the employee will receive such early consideration for a continuing contract only if he/she has requested a full year evaluation cycle prior to the school year in which notice to the Superintendent is given.

7.04 SCHOOL CALENDAR

- A. The FEA and the Board agree that the Board must maintain the autonomy to work with other schools in calendar development. However, the FEA and the Board agree that staff input is both valuable and desirable. Therefore, for the purpose of advisory input a committee from the FEA is to meet annually, prior to the start of winter break, with the administration to discuss calendar concerns before the yearly calendar is considered. The notification to initiate this committee shall be from the FEA President. The Board shall maintain the final authority to adopt the school calendar. An effort will be made to coordinate the District's calendar with those of the Knox County Career Center and the other Knox County school districts.
- B. Unit members must be paid when schools are closed due to epidemic or other public calamity as described in Section G below.
- C. If make-up days must be added to the calendar for calamities prior to Easter, for which no provision has been made in the original calendar and which exceed the statutory five (5) days, a committee shall be established with equal representation from the FEA and the Administration/Board to develop specific alternatives for making up the days. The alternatives shall be submitted to the entire staff, including non-teaching personnel, to vote on the alternatives. The alternative that receives the most votes shall be submitted to the Superintendent who shall recommend the choice to the Board. The Board shall maintain the final authority to adopt the school calendar and any necessary revisions. This section is intended to cover make-up days that do not involve an emergency situation. In the case of an emergency this provision shall be waived.
- D. Spring parent-teacher conferences, if required, will be held after third quarter grades have been submitted. No parent-teacher conferences shall be scheduled during the week that Ohio's State Tests are administered, with the understanding that this provision does not apply to any make-up period for administering such tests.
- E. Other than on the day of monthly staff meeting, the unit member workday shall not exceed seven hours and twenty-five minutes which will include a thirty (30) minute duty-free lunch period. Staff meetings will not typically exceed forty-five (45) minutes.

Bargaining unit members working more than six (6) hours per day are entitled to 200 minutes per week for the purpose of lesson planning, evaluating student progress, conferencing, and/or team planning as defined by OAC 3301-35-05.

F. The unit member work year shall be one hundred seventy-nine (179) days. One hundred seventy-one (171) of the days shall be with students. Eight (8) days shall be for professional purposes with students not in attendance occurring as follows:

Four (4) days as uninterrupted staff work days.

One (1) day uninterrupted staff workday on the first or second unit member workday, as recommended by the committee established under paragraph A of this section.

One (1) workday after students' last day.

Two (2) days for professional development.

Two days for parent-teacher conferences or curriculum development meetings.

If requested to work beyond 179 days, and the unit member agrees to do so, they shall be paid for each day at the member's per diem rate. One orientation/open house may be held under this provision. Such event will be for a maximum of two (2) hours.

If requested by the administration to attend a voluntary in-service which is held during non-school hours, unit members will be paid at the sub-rate or per diem rate, as prescribed by the grant, or whichever is greater.

G. The FEA and the Board agree that unit members will be excused from attendance on the first five (5) days school is declared closed due to a calamity.

Cancellation of practices and rehearsals scheduled for the school day shall be at the building principal's discretion. If the number of calamity days exceed five (5) in any school year, unit members will be required to report for days six (6) through eight (8) unless Knox County is under a Level 2 or 3 weather emergency. Unit members who live outside of Knox County will be excused if their resident county is under a Level 2 or 3 weather emergency. All days beyond eight (8) will be made up as designated on the school calendar. If legislation is enacted that alters the way in which calamity days are handled, representatives of the Board and the FEA will meet within thirty (30) calendar days to bargain regarding the impact.

H. The responsibility for planning and conducting the local in-service requirements of the District will be a cooperative process of the FEA and the local District administration.

Expenses for in-service shall be paid by the Board within the budget appropriated.

I. No interim reports or grades shall be due on a Monday or on the first school day following a break in the calendar. The Superintendent (or designee) and the FEA President shall meet annually to determine a schedule for submission of interim reports and grades.

7.05 STANDARDS BASED EVALUATION SYSTEM

A. <u>Philosophy</u>

Evaluation is a method to improve the educational program. The procedure should be cooperative, supportive, constructive, and personalized. It should provide a comprehensive and objective plan for improvement based upon clearly defined and attainable professional goals. The system should accomplish two objectives: 1) the development of a professional goal as it relates to a district SMART goal, 2) the evaluation of the unit member as he/she fulfills the position to which he/she is assigned.

Formal appraisal, for individual professional growth and for performance of duties, must be constant. Each area of an appraisal system must have as its underlying principles the basic philosophy, goals, and objectives of the school system involved and the new OTES model. In designing an appraisal system, the individual child's educational growth, the professional staff and the school system should be considered.

The evaluation procedures shall accomplish three primary goals: 1) assist all personnel in developing sensitivity to their competencies; 2) identify the general areas in behavior, competencies and skills in which improvement is needed; 3) develop realistic objectives, both long and short range, to assist the professional growth of individuals.

The Fredericktown Board of Education is adopting a standards-based teacher evaluation policy that conforms to the framework for evaluation of teachers developed under the section 3319.112 of the Revised Code. This teacher evaluation policy is adopted in conformance with said framework.

The evaluation policy is intended to provide an evaluation model that is research-based, transparent, fair, and adaptable to the needs of the District. The Board believes in the importance of ongoing assessment and meaningful feedback as a powerful vehicle to support improved teaching performance and student growth.

This policy has been developed in consultation with teachers employed by the Board.

Given the dynamic nature of the mandated teacher evaluation process, the Board authorizes and directs the Superintendent to work with the Fredericktown Association President to establish and maintain an ongoing Evaluation Policy Consultation committee, for the express purpose of recommending necessary changes to the Board and Association for the appropriate revision of this policy.

Definitions

- 1. "OTES" Ohio Teacher Evaluation System as spelled out in 3319.111 and 3319.112 of the Revised Code.
- 2. "Teacher" This policy applies to the following employees of the District:
 - a. "Teachers" working under a license issued under sections 3319.22,
 3319.26, 3319.222 or 3319.226 of the Revised Code who spend at least fifty percent of their time providing content-related student instruction;
 - b. "Teachers" working under a permanent certificate issued under section 3319.222 of the Revised Code as it existed prior to September 2003 who spends at least fifty percent of their time providing content-related student instruction;
 - c. "Teachers" working under a permanent certificate issued under section 3319.222 of the Revised Code as it existed prior to September 2006 who spend at least fifty percent of their time providing content-related student instruction; and,

- d. "Teachers" working under a permit issued under 3319.301 of the Revised Code who spend at least fifty percent of their time providing contentrelated student instruction.
- 3. "Credentialed Evaluator" For purposes of this policy, each "teacher" subject to evaluation will be evaluated by a person who:
 - a. Meets the eligibility requirements under Revised Code Section 3319.111(D); and
 - b. Holds a credential established by the Ohio Department of Education; and
 - c. Has completed state-sponsored evaluation training and has passed an online credentialing assessment.
 - d. A qualified and credentialed person from the County Educational Service Center (ESC) who is used to evaluate only accomplished/skilled personnel and employees who are not new to the district. Such person must hold a license designated for being a superintendent, assistant superintendent, principal, vocational director, administrative specialist, or supervisor in any educational area issued under section 3319.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.
 - e. A qualified and credentialed evaluator cannot be a bargaining unit member and a bargaining unit member cannot evaluate another member.
- 4. "Student Growth Measure (SGM)" Tool or assessment that is used to measure, or determine, student academic growth. As an evaluation factor, the SGM dimension is based on value-added scores, assessments from ODE's list of assessments for "teachers" where value-added scores are not available, and from local measures of student growth based on student learning objectives (SLOs). SGM results are reported as follows:
 - Most Effective (5) 600 points
 - Above Average (4) 400 points
 - Average (3) 300 points
 - Approaching Average (2) 200 points
 - Least Effective (1) 0 points
- 5. "Student Learning Objective (SLO)" A measurable, long-term academic growth target that a "teacher" sets at the beginning of the year for all students or for subgroups of students over a given interval of instruction based upon baseline data gathered at the beginning of the course.
- B. <u>Standards-Based "Teacher" Evaluation</u>

1. Teacher evaluations will utilize multiple factors, with the intent of providing a fair and meaningful feedback to each teacher and assigning an effectiveness rating based in equal part upon teacher performance and student growth.

Each teacher evaluation will result in an effectiveness rating of:

- a. Accomplished;
- b. Skilled;
- c. Developing; or
- d. Ineffective.

The above represents the standards created by the State Board of Education which will be used and are incorporated herein by reference.

- 2. The Superintendent shall annually cause to be filed a report to the department of education the following information: number of teachers for whom an evaluation was conducted as well as the number of teachers assigned each effectiveness rating as set forth above, aggregated by teacher preparation programs from which and the years in which the teachers graduated.
- 3. Fifty percent (50%) of each evaluation will be based upon teacher performance and fifty percent (50%) on multiple measures of student growth, if available. If the data for value added is unavailable for any reason or unreliable, then the total (100%) evaluation will be based upon the 50% observation data.
- 4. Not later than September 15, or in the case of a new teacher, within thirty (30) days of the first day worked; each teacher shall be notified in writing of the name and position of his or her evaluator.
- 5. All teacher evaluations will be completed by May 1. Teachers evaluated under this policy will be provided with a written copy of their evaluation results by May 10. Any teacher who will be non-renewed will be notified by May 31.
- 6. The Board may evaluate a teacher who received a rating of Accomplished on the teacher's most receive evaluation conducted under this section once every three (3) school years, so long as the teacher's student academic growth measure, for the most recent school year for which data is available, is average or higher, as determined by the department of education.

The Board may evaluate a teacher who received a rating of Skilled on the teacher's most recent evaluation conducted under this section once every two (2) school years, so long as the teacher's student academic growth measure, for the most recent school year for which data is available, is average or higher, as determined by the department of education.

In any year that a teacher is not formally evaluated pursuant to this section as a result of receiving a rating of Accomplished or Skilled on the teacher's most recent evaluation, at least on formal observation and at least one conference will be held.

Nothing in this section prevents the Board from evaluating a teacher in the final year of a limited contract.

7. A teacher who has submitted an official notice of retirement prior to December 1 of the school year does not require an evaluation for that year.

A teacher who has or will be on leave for fifty percent (50%) or more of the school year does not require an evaluation for that year.

C. <u>Assessment of "Teacher" Performance</u>

- 1. Teacher performance will be evaluated during the two cycles of formal observations and periodic classroom walk-throughs. Such performance, which will comprise fifty-percent (50%) of a teacher's effectiveness rating, will be assessed through a holistic process by trained-credentialed evaluators based upon the following Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession:
 - a. Understanding student learning and development and respecting the diversity of the students they teach;
 - b. Understanding the content area for which they have the instructional responsibility;
 - c. Understanding and using varied assessments to inform instruction, evaluate and ensure student learning;
 - d. Planning and delivering effective instruction that advances individual student learning;
 - e. Creating learning environments that promote high levels of learning and student achievement;
 - f. Collaborating and communicating with students, parents and other educators, district administrators and the community; and,
 - g. Assuming responsibility for professional growth, performance and involvement.
- 2. The Board and the Association shall select or develop evaluation tools to be used in calculating teacher performance. These tools shall be aligned to the Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession and the Ohio Teacher Evaluation System Performance Rubric.
- D. <u>Observation Procedure</u>
 - 1. All teachers and staff members who will be evaluated herein will receive training in all aspects of OTES, the state adopted evaluation framework, and the standards for the teaching profession prior to beginning their work.

- a. All teachers shall be evaluated based on two (2) observations each school year.
- b. Teachers on a limited contract who are under consideration for nonrenewal shall receive at least three (3) observations.
- c. The first observation must be completed by December 15.
- d. The second/third observation must be completed by May 1.
- e. There will be at least fifteen (15) school days between observations.
- f. All formal observations shall be preceded by a conference between the evaluator and the employee.
- g. Pre-conference form will be provided to the teacher. Teacher will be notified three (3) days prior to pre-conference of date and time of observation. (See Appendix D for form.)
- h. A post-observation conference shall be held within five (5) working days after the observation where the evaluator will give the teacher the completed observation form. The post observation conference will include reflection from both parties.
- i. All observations will be announced.
- j. Time limits may be adjusted due to unforeseen circumstances. At the agreement/discretion of the Superintendent or Administration and the FEA, these limits may be altered.
- 2. Periodic Walkthroughs
 - a. Walkthroughs shall not unreasonably disrupt and/or interrupt the learning environment.
 - b. Teachers will have no more than four (4) walkthroughs in each evaluation cycle.
 - c. Walkthroughs will be no less than five (5) minutes and no more than fifteen (15) minutes.
 - d. Walkthrough form attached provided to the "teacher" by the evaluator within five (5) working days.
 - e. A final debriefing shall be held with the "teacher" by the evaluator within five (5) working days of the walkthrough if requested by the teacher or administrator. Any corrective action will be addressed in this debriefing.

f. Time limits may be adjusted due to unforeseen circumstances. At the agreement/discretion of the Superintendent or Administration and the FEA these limits may be altered.

E. <u>Fairness</u>

- 1. Should an issue arise with the teacher evaluation policy in which a teacher believes that fundamental fairness has not occurred, they shall have the following rights:
 - a. Shall be allowed to request a different evaluator and such request shall may be honored by the District. This could occur due to a disagreement with the level of student growth, the rating of performance and/or the summative, or overall, evaluation rating.
 - b. A teacher shall be entitled to Union representation at any conference held during this procedure in which the teacher will be advised of an impending adverse personnel action.
 - c. Any violation of either procedural due process of law or arbitrary or unreasonable action shall automatically require re-employment of the teacher under a continuing contract, if eligible, or an appropriate limited contract if the teacher is not eligible for a continuing contract. If a person had a multiple year contract and was being non-renewed or dismissed, any violation in a previous year would not result in this automatic reemployment.

F. Assessment of Student Growth

 Student academic growth will be measured through multiple measures that shall include value-added scores on evaluations for "teachers" where value-added scores are available. Other student growth measures shall be selected from the Ohio Department of Education's assessment list for "teachers" of subjects where value-added scores are not available and/or local measures of student growth. Data from Board-determined multiple measures will be converted as follows:

| • | Most Effective (5) | 600 points |
|---|-------------------------|------------|
| • | Above Average (4) | 400 points |
| ٠ | Average (3) | 300 points |
| ٠ | Approaching Average (2) | 200 points |
| • | Least Effective (1) | 0 points |
| | | - |

2. In calculating student academic growth for an evaluation, a student shall not be included if the student has sixty or more unexcused absences for the school year from the classroom.

- 3. The first year of collected data for the evaluation procedure shall be derived from value-added and other student growth measure scores from assessments taken in the school year following the effective date of this agreement. The first evaluation cycle shall be completed by first day of May of the second school year following the effective date of this agreement.
- G. <u>Professional Growth and Improvement Plans</u>
 - 1. <u>Based upon the results of the annual teacher evaluation as converted to the</u> <u>"Evaluation matrix" (see appendix for form), each teacher must develop either a</u> <u>professional growth plan or professional improvement plan as follows:</u>
 - a. Teachers with above expected levels of student growth will develop a professional growth plan with a credentialed evaluator selected in conjunction with the building administrator.
 - b. Teachers with expected levels of student growth will develop a professional growth plan collaboratively with the credentialed evaluator and will have input from
 - c. Teachers with below expected levels of student growth will develop an improvement plan with their credentialed evaluator. The administration will assign the credentialed evaluator for the evaluation cycle and approve the improvement plan.

H. <u>Professional Development</u>

- 1. The Board shall provide for professional development to accelerate and continue teacher growth and provide support to poorly performing teachers as set forth in the collective bargaining agreement.
- 2. The Board shall provide for the allocation of financial resources to support professional development.

I. <u>Personnel Decisions</u>

- 1. The Board shall adhere to the terms and procedures set forth in the collective bargaining agreement for use by district administrators in making retention and promotion decisions based on evaluation results.
- 2. Seniority shall not be the basis for making retention decisions, except when choosing between "teachers" who have comparable evaluations as set forth in the collective bargaining agreement.

Comparable evaluations should be derived from multiple summative ratings. Starting in the 2013/14 school year, a teacher will receive a point total of 4 for accomplished, 3 for skilled, 2 for developing and 1 for ineffective. In a three-year period of time, a teacher will have a rating of 3 thru 12. Any teacher with a score of 9 thru 12 over three years would be in group one, teachers with a score of 4 thru 8 would be in group two, and teachers with a score of 3 would be in group three. Each separate group would be considered "comparable", with group one being the highest rated. Total scores would always be considered as consisting of the most recent three years' worth of evaluation data.

- 3. The evaluation procedure contained in this agreement shall not be used in the retention, promotion, removal, reduction or recall of a newly-hired teacher until three years of data have been collected and three evaluation cycles have been completed. Value-added and other student growth measure data derived from assessments taken in one school year shall be combined with performance ratings that are assigned in the next school year to assign a summative evaluation rating. Nothing in this provision limits the right of the Board to non-renew a limited contract teacher as permitted by Ohio Revised Code.
- 4. Whenever there is a transfer causing a change in a teacher's teaching assignment (e.g., building, grade level and/or subject matter), the first year in the new assignment will not be included in the three-year data period.
- J. <u>Poorly Performing Teachers</u>
 - Poorly performing teachers refers to teachers identified though the evaluation process set forth in these policies who demonstrate an inability and/or unwillingness to meet the reasonable expectations of this standards based evaluation system. For purposes of further defining Poorly Performing Teacher:

 A teacher who is assigned an evaluation rating of Ineffective for three (3) consecutive years.

K. <u>Retention, Removal and Promotion of Poorly Performing Teachers</u>

- 1. It is the purpose of this policy to improve the quality of instruction, enhance student learning and be a model of professional growth intended to be used continually to assist educators in improving teacher performance. The process is to be collaborative and in support of the teacher. Through this process, the Board will use this data to assist in employment decisions, including retention, promotion of teachers, renewal of teaching contracts, and, where necessary and with reliable date, removal/nonrenewal of poorly performing teachers.
- 2. The removal of poorly performing teachers shall be in accordance with the ORC and any applicable provisions of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.
- 3. Nothing is this policy will be deemed to prevent the Board from exercising its rights to non-renew, terminate, or suspend a teaching contract as provided by law and the terms of the collective bargaining agreement between it and the Fredericktown Education Association. The evaluation system and procedures set

forth in this policy shall not create an expectation of continued employment for teachers on a limited contract that are evaluated under this policy in accordance with 3319.11 notwithstanding the teacher's summative rating.

- L. <u>Remediation of Deficiencies Identified During Observations and Walkthroughs</u>
 - 1. The remediation plan, as outlined in this section, shall detail:
 - a. Performance issues documented as deficient;
 - b. Specific performance expectations;
 - c. The allocation of financial and other resources and assistance to be provided by the District to support professional development of the teacher;
 - d. Sufficient, specific timelines, not less than six (6) weeks, as to allow for the remediation of identified deficiencies.
 - e. The provision for a trained teacher mentor/coach as appropriate. The mentor/coach will be provided release time to allow for meetings/ observations with the teacher under a remediation plan.
 - 2. If a remediation plan is developed prior to March 1, those identified deficiencies shall be reevaluated as part of the performance assessment process for the remainder of the school year. A remediation plan for deficiencies that are successfully remediated during the remainder of the school plan shall be deemed completed.
 - 3. If a remediation plan is developed after March 1, the plan shall be continued into the next school year.
 - 4. Other observed deficiencies regarding the teacher's failure to adhere to reasonable work rules and other documented deficiencies not noted during the formal observations or walkthroughs must be put in writing and provided to the teacher within three (3) work days after the observed deficiency occurs. The evaluator shall provide, in writing, to a teacher any plan for remediation of identified deficiencies and shall include a reasonable time period for said remediation.

M. <u>Non-teaching Unit Members</u>

Non-teaching unit members will be evaluated using an instrument that relates to their job description. A committee of unit members, appointed by FEA, and administrators shall be formed to develop these instruments. The instruments will be completed by June 30, 2011. The instruments shall be approved by the FEA executive committee prior to its initial use. These positions include nurse, media specialists, speech and language pathologist, guidance counselor, and technology coordinator.

- N. The provisions of this Article do not apply to a unit member who is on leave during a particular school year. If the member is on leave for only part of a school year, the requirements and time deadlines of this Article will be adjusted, as appropriate in light of the particular circumstances, to take into account the member's absence from duty.
- O. In the event of a short-term unanticipated absence of either the unit member being evaluated or the evaluator, the time limits appearing in this Article will be relaxed and adjusted, as appropriate in light of the particular circumstances, to accommodate the absence.
- P. The provisions of this Article and Appendix D supersede Section 3319.111 of the Ohio Revised Code.

7.06 CERTIFICATION/LICENSURE

It will be the responsibility of the unit member to have a valid unexpired teaching credential, or true copy thereof, on file at the Board office for the position to which they are assigned. No unit member shall receive compensation for performance of duties if a valid unexpired teaching credential for the position to which they are assigned is not on file at the Board office. The Board and/or its agents shall not assign a unit member to a position for which the unit member is not certified or is not able to obtain certification/licensure.

The Board shall notify a unit member during the school year in which the unit member's certificate/license expires, that renewal or upgrading of the certificate/license will be necessary.

7.07 TRANSFER AND VACANCY

- A. Vacancy
 - 1. During the school year, announcements of vacancies, which are existing or newly created teaching, supplemental, or administrative positions shall be posted on faculty bulletin boards and in the principal's office in each school building and in the Central Office for no less than five (5) workdays, prior to any public posting. Deadline for application shall be stipulated. This provision shall be mutually waived if the vacancy occurs within ten (10) calendar days prior to the start of a semester, or during a time when school is in session. It may also be waived due to other situations with the consent of the FEA President. Any vacancies which occur after the end of the school year shall be posted promptly using district email. The FEA President or designee in his/her absence will be notified of vacancies or potential vacancies prior to posting.

Each posting shall clearly stipulate the required licensure/certification for the position, a description of the duties to be performed, minimum qualifications (in accordance with the job description), salary, and the procedures for application.

- 2. Extended sick leave or unpaid leaves of absence are not considered vacancies.
- 3. Vacancies shall be filled with the most senior applicant, unless in the judgment of the Superintendent, said applicant is not the qualified based upon past job performance or upon the teacher's training and experience. The Superintendent will not be arbitrary and capricious in making such decisions.
 - a. If a unit member applies for a vacancy and is not selected for the position, the member will be afforded a meeting with the Superintendent upon request to explain the determination.
 - b. The intent of this section is to give preference to current teachers being transferred prior to non-bargaining unit members being employed.

B. <u>Voluntary Transfers</u>

- 1. Letters of Intent forms will be utilized as the application for any vacancy of an existing position that is open or becomes open during the summer recess. All unit members will be encouraged to state their intent for any position that they may wish to fill and for which they are certified or licensed. The unit member has the right to amend their Letter of Intent form.
- 2. The unit member will be offered the opportunity to interview for any vacancy for which they have applied and are qualified pursuant to B. 1.
- 3. The Superintendent may deny a voluntary transfer request due to the District's operational needs. If this happens, the teacher may request to meet with the Superintendent to discuss the reasons for this decision.

C. <u>Involuntary Transfers</u>

- 1. If the Superintendent (or designee) directs an involuntary transfer in building, subject, and/or grade level, notification shall be given to the involved unit member. Within three (3) days of such notification the unit member may request a meeting with the Superintendent (or designee). No involuntary transfer shall be effective sooner than five (5) administrative working days following the notification or three (3) administrative working days following the meeting, whichever is later.
- 2. Any unit member has the option of resigning in lieu of accepting an involuntary transfer.
- 3. If the unit member requests a meeting with the Superintendent (or designee), at such meeting, the Superintendent (or designee) shall discuss his/her rationale for such transfer. After notification to the Superintendent (or designee), the unit member may, at his/her option, have a representative of his/her choosing present at the meeting. The administration may also have representation of their choice at such meeting.

- 4. The Board shall transport school supplies and materials for a unit member who has been transferred.
- D. Staffing needs are a concern of the Board, administration, unit members, and community. The Board, as a management function, must retain the prerogative of determining the staffing needs. This prerogative cannot be relinquished although input from the FEA is both desirable and appreciated.
- E. The right of assignment of all personnel shall rest with the Superintendent as per Section 3319.01 Ohio Revised Code. The Superintendent will not be arbitrary or capricious in making such an assignment.

7.08 REDUCTION IN FORCE

If after consideration of all alternatives, the Board determines it necessary to reduce the number of teaching positions the following procedures shall apply:

A RIF may occur for the following reasons only:

- 1. Decrease in overall pupil enrollment from the previous school year, in a grade level, or program area.
- 2. Suspension of schools or territorial changes.
- 3. Return to duty of a unit member from a leave of absence.
- 4. Curriculum changes.
- 5. Financial reasons.

Procedure

- A. The FEA President shall be notified of the extent of any staff reduction at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to Board action and shall be further notified as to which unit members shall be suspended. Implementation of any reduction in staff shall be restricted to an effective date of August 15.
- B. Reduction shall first be covered by attrition; however, the Board shall not be required to fill any vacancy.

If additional reductions are necessary, it shall be done through seniority of teachers with comparable evaluations as defined herein.

1. <u>Seniority</u> – For the purpose of this contract, seniority shall be defined as the number of years of continuous service in the bargaining unit with comparable evaluations. Seniority shall accrue for all time a unit member is on active pay status or is receiving workers' compensation benefits or is on layoff status or FMLA leave.

Time spent on inactive pay status (e.g., unpaid leave of absence) shall not contribute to the accrual of seniority but shall not constitute a break in seniority. Part-time unit members' seniority shall be determined on a percentage basis, if comparative evaluations. The percent of seniority shall be equal to the percent of the part-time employment. If two (2) or more unit members have equal seniority and comparable evaluations as defined herein, then the following shall apply:

- a. The date of the Board meeting at which the unit member was hired, then by;
- b. The date on which the unit member submitted a completed job application.
- 2. A unit member on layoff status shall not accrue service credit for the purposes of placement on the salary schedule, but shall accrue seniority as defined above.
- C. Those unit members on limited contracts in the area of licensure/certification affected shall have their contracts suspended first in accordance with Section 3319.17 of the Ohio Revised Code and comparable evaluations, as defined herein. In the event that continuing contract unit members must be reduced, their contracts shall then be suspended in accordance with Section 3319.17 of the Ohio Revised Code. Those unit members with comparable evaluations who may be RIF'd from a position shall have the right to bump a less senior unit member in another area if they are properly licensed/certified for that position. (Limited contract unit members shall not be allowed to bump continuing contract unit members.)

The Superintendent shall provide the FEA President with a seniority list on or before March 15 of each school year. The seniority list shall be made up for each area of licensure/certification with unit members placed on all lists for which they are licensed/certified. Part-time unit members shall appear on the seniority lists but shall be listed separately from the names of full-time unit members.

- D. No teacher rated as Ineffective in each of his or her three (3) most recent evaluations will be recalled. Recall shall be done in inverse order except as otherwise required by law, continuing contracts first, then limited contracts. If the teachers subject to RIF have comparable evaluations, then the seniority will be the determining factor. Recall shall be to a position for which the individual is properly licensed/certified. No new unit members may be hired until laid off unit member(s) have been offered the position and have rejected the offer, or is removed from the recall list as outlined below.
- E. Comparable evaluations are defined as follows. Starting in the 2013/14 school year, a teacher will receive a point total of 4 for accomplished, 3 for skilled, 2 for developing and 1 for ineffective. In a three-year period of time, a teacher will have a rating of 3 thru 12. Any teacher with a score of 9 thru 12 over three years would be in group one, teachers with a score of 4 thru 8 would be in group two, and teachers with a score of 3 would be in group three. Each separate group would be considered "comparable", with group one being the highest rated. Total scores would always be considered as consisting of the most recent three years' worth of evaluation data.

Rights While on Suspension

- A. If recalled, the unit member shall have the right to return to the same contract status, seniority level, total sick leave accumulation and any other benefits of employment that had accrued to the employee prior to the suspension.
- B. The unit member shall have the right to all insurance benefits for a period of thirty-six (36) months providing the unit member meets the eligibility requirements set forth by the carrier. The unit member must pay the full cost of the premium fifteen (15) days prior to the due date.
- C. The Board shall not act to interfere with the unit member's lawful right to unemployment compensation benefits while on layoff.

Recall Rights

- A. Unit members who are suspended shall be retained on the recall list for twenty-four (24) months.
- B. A unit member may be removed from the recall list if he/she:
 - 1. Waives his/her recall rights in writing.
 - 2. Resigns.
 - 3. Fails to accept recall to a position for which he/she is licensed/certified within five (5) days of notification.
 - 4. Fails to report to work within ten (10) working days after receipt of the notice of recall, unless sick or injured.

The unit member who has been affected by a staff reduction shall be responsible for keeping an updated address and telephone number on file in the Superintendent's office.

All recall notices and acceptance notices shall be mailed by certified mail with knowledge of receipt provided to the Superintendent, or by hand delivery.

7.09 PERSONNEL FILES

- A. Location and Maintenance The official personnel files of all unit members will be kept at the Board Building. Official personnel files of all unit members are maintained by the Superintendent (and/or designee).
- B. Contents The personnel files shall include, if available, the following:
 - 1. Application for employment;

- 2. Preemployment references (non-confidential);
- 3. Transcripts of training and education records;
- 4. Copies of individual employment contracts;
- 5. Copies of current, applicable certificates and other licenses which are provided by the unit members;
- 6. Copies of formal evaluations;
- 7. Appropriate letters or records of commendation or reprimand;
- 8. Unit members' replies to letters or evaluation;
- 9. Appropriate medical records.
- C. A unit member shall have access to his/her personnel file upon reasonable request. A representative of a unit member shall have access to the unit member's personnel file when the unit member requests in writing such access to the Superintendent (and/or designee).
- D. Except as otherwise required by law, access to the personnel file of a unit member by others shall be limited to Board members, current school system administrators, confidential central office personnel, or the designee of the unit member. A unit member will be notified, in writing, of the name of any person other than those cited above who requests to view the unit member's file. Such notification shall be made prior to access by the person requesting.
- E. A unit member shall be entitled to a copy of any specific material(s) in his/her file upon written request.
- F. Unit members shall have the right to place any items as listed in B. 7. into their personnel file.
- G. All materials placed in a unit member's personnel file shall be accurate, relevant, timely, and complete.

7.10 PUBLIC COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

Any complaint regarding a unit member that relates to any employment duties which is brought to the attention of the administration and/or Board member shall be processed in the following manner:

Step 1: The complaint will be directed by the building principal to the unit member(s) involved. If the complaint is of such a nature that the building principal does not believe that he/she need become immediately involved in the situation, the principal may direct the unit member to attempt to resolve the issue with the complainant. If the complaint is of such a nature that the principal believes he/she may resolve the matter without involving the unit member, he/she may attempt to resolve the matter. Upon resolution, the unit member must be informed of the outcome.

- Step 2: Any complaint unresolved at Step 1 may be submitted at the request of the unit member or complainant, either orally or in writing, to the building principal who shall attempt to resolve the matter to the satisfaction of all parties concerned.
- Step 3: Any complaint unresolved at Step 2 shall be forwarded by the building principal to the Superintendent. The complaint must be in writing and signed by the complainant.
- Step 4: Upon receipt of the complaint, the Superintendent shall confer with all parties. The unit member shall have the right to be present at all meetings of the Superintendent and the complainant. All parties shall have the right to representation if they so choose.
- Step 5: If the Superintendent is unable to resolve the complaint to the satisfaction of all parties concerned, at the request of the complainant or the unit member, the Superintendent shall forward the results of the discussion at Step 4 along with his/her recommendations, in writing, to the Board and provide a copy of such to all parties involved.
- Step 6: After receipt of the findings and recommendations of the Superintendent and before action is taken thereon, the Board shall afford the parties an opportunity to meet with the Board. The unit member may choose to have a representative of his/her choosing present at the meeting. Copies of any action taken by the Board shall be forwarded to all parties.

The Board will make every effort to secure a complainant's compliance with this procedure, but shall not be responsible for a third party's noncompliance.

If a complaint pertains to a unit member's actions while fulfilling the duties of a supplemental contract, the building principal or athletic director, whichever is appropriate, shall process the complaint under Steps 1-3 above. Further, the Athletic Department Handbook shall be followed for complaints about athletics.

An anonymous complaint will not be maintained in a unit member's personnel file, nor processed under the procedures of this section. This provision is not intended to preclude the Board or administration from taking appropriate action to address a problem that may surface in an anonymous complaint and that is independently corroborated; in no event, however, will action be taken against a unit member unless the unit member, with FEA representation if requested by the unit member, has been afforded an opportunity to respond to the issue.

The FEA and Board mutually recognize that any reprisal against a complainant or a complainant's child is inappropriate.

7.11 ACADEMIC FREEDOM

A unit member shall have the right to perform his/her professional responsibilities in the classroom in ways which best encourage a broad and complete understanding of educational subject matter. Such right shall be exercised within the bounds of professional responsibility and Board-adopted educational philosophy, policy, and curricula. However, this does not exclude the right and obligation of the administration to question, consult and direct whenever necessary.

7.12 ACCESS

The Board shall provide for an extension of the building office telephone to be available to unit members in a location affording privacy for business telephone calls. Unit members shall use such telephones only for calls related to the performance of their contractual duties.

7.13 LESSON PLANS

Lesson plans will show evidence of direction for instruction and implementation of courses of study.

7.14 ADMINISTERING MEDICATION/MEDICAL PROCEDURES

- A. Unit members, except school nurses, shall not be required to administer medication or perform medical procedures to pupils, but are required to take reasonable measures to assure the welfare of pupils. Unit members may be required to supervise the student's self-administration of medication in accordance with Board policies and procedures.
- B. Unit members, except school nurses, shall not routinely be required to check students for head lice. In special circumstances, unit members may be required to conduct such examinations under the supervision of qualified medical personnel to protect the health and welfare of pupils.

7.15 MEDICAL

- A. <u>Hearing and Vision</u> Unit members will be provided the opportunity to have hearing and vision checkups at least every three (3) years. These tests will be administered by school personnel at Board expense.
- B. <u>Physical Examination</u> The Board may require unit members to obtain physical examinations from a Board-appointed physician when necessary to protect the health and safety of pupils, unit members, and other school employees. The Board shall pay for all such examinations. The Board shall reimburse the unit member for the cost of a second physical obtained by the unit member after his/her examination by the Board-appointed physician when the Board physician determines the examination was necessary to confirm the results of the initial physical.

7.16 UNIT MEMBERS WITH CONTAGIOUS DISEASES

- A. If there is reason to believe that a unit member is afflicted with a contagious disease on the basis of a written report submitted to the Superintendent, which shall identify the person(s) making the report, and shall stipulate the reason(s) why the reported unit member is suspected of being a carrier, the unit member will be required to submit to a medical evaluation in accordance with Section 3313.71 of the Ohio Revised Code. If a report is received which does not meet the above requirements, it shall not be acted on. The costs for any such medical evaluation and/or related procedures shall be paid by the Board.
- B. The determination of whether a unit member diagnosed as having a contagious disease is to be permitted to remain employed in a capacity that involves contact with students or other school employees shall be made by the Superintendent on a case-by-case basis in consultation with, and based upon, the recommendation of a medical review team composed of the unit member's treating physician, the Board's physician, and a county or state public health care official. Any costs of such a medical review team evaluation shall be paid by the Board. In making the recommendation the medical review team shall consider:
 - 1. The nature of the risk of the unit member's medical condition (how the disease is transmitted);
 - 2. The duration of the medical condition (how long is the carrier infectious);
 - 3. The severity of the risk of the medical condition (what is the potential harm to third parties); and
 - 4. The probability the disease will be transmitted and will cause varying degrees of harm.
 - 5. Whether or not the unit member is otherwise qualified to remain in his/her current job. "Otherwise qualified" means that the unit member is able to meet all of the job requirements in spite of the unit member's medical condition.
- C. In making a determination of whether a unit member diagnosed as having a contagious disease is permitted to remain employed in the capacity that involves contact with students or school staff, the Superintendent shall comply with the provisions of this Agreement and Section 3319.13 of the Ohio Revised Code and shall consider the recommendation of the individuals identified in B above and shall base his/her decision on the following factors: (a) whether the disease or infection is currently contagious; and (b) whether the unit member constitutes a direct threat to the health of others or is unable, by reason of the disease or infection, to perform his/her job. Pending such a determination, the unit member will be permitted to continue working unless it is determined the unit member poses an immediate threat to the health of others.
- D. The unit member will be unconditionally assigned to his/her current position unless the Superintendent, utilizing factors in C above, assigns the unit member to a work assignment under restrictive conditions, or the unit member upon exhaustion of accumulated sick leave is placed on a leave of absence with pay, or disability leave by Board action.

- E. If a unit member is placed on an involuntary leave of absence under C and D as a result of his/her physical inability to perform his/her job duties, the unit member will have a right to a hearing in accordance with Section 3319.16 of the Ohio Revised Code.
- F. A unit member may request a reconsideration of any action taken under C and D, provided such request is accompanied by medical evidence of a change in the unit member's health status.
- G. Subsequent to the determination that temporary or permanent removal of a disabled unit member is justified, the Board shall support the unit member's application for disability retirement, if the unit member elects to make such application.
- H. The medical records of all unit members shall remain confidential, except where disclosure is necessary for the administration of this article or mandated by law.

The identity of the infected unit member shall not be revealed to the general public. Any media contact will be referred to the Superintendent or his/her designee.

I. The Board shall not discharge any unit member nor otherwise discriminate against any unit member with respect to wages, hours, terms or other conditions of employment on the basis of the fact that such unit member has contracted a chronic communicable disease or handicap related thereto, consistent with the medical review team evaluation.

All reports of suspected carriers, and all aspects of the medical evaluation shall be treated as "highly confidential." Any report received or rendered during these procedures shall be released only to the Superintendent and the unit member. Any discussion of a report by the Board shall be conducted in executive session. The unit member's immediate supervisor will be informed of the medical status of the unit member.

J. The Board shall implement education programs for all school employees, students, and the school community regarding chronic communicable diseases and their transmission. The purpose of such programs shall be to reduce irrational fears regarding the diseases and their transmission within the school environment.

7.17 CLASS COVERAGE

When it becomes necessary to ask a unit member to cover the class responsibilities for another unit member for a period or less, the unit member asked may or may not accept the additional assignment according to the pre-planned use of the time involved. (Library or study hall assignment does not alter the basic responsibility of said unit member and is therefore exempt from this provision.) Whenever possible, substitute teachers will be employed for half day or longer assignments.

If an elementary specialist (art, music, physical education, technology instructor, or teacher of character education/guidance services/test prep) is absent and a substitute is unavailable, the regular classroom unit member may be required to supervise his/her students during the

specialist scheduled time with the students. The classroom unit member shall be compensated at the rate of seventeen dollars (\$17.00) per hour. See Appendix E.

If a teacher is required by the Ohio Department of Education to administer individual diagnostic tests where teachers are required to work with students in a one on one environment, a substitute shall be hired to monitor/instruct the remaining students of the teacher, during this time period.

7.18 CLASS SIZE

It is recognized by the Board that pupil-unit member ratio is an important aspect of an effective educational program. The Board agrees to continue its efforts to keep class sizes at an acceptable number as dictated by the financial condition of the classroom space availability of the District. The Board will provide for a pupil-unit member ratio that meets or exceeds state standards. When crowded conditions exist in any classroom, the unit member may request a meeting with the Principal's Advisory Committee to discuss options for dealing with the problem. These options could include a unit member aide's assistance, forming another class, regrouping of students, or hiring more staff. The Principal's Advisory Committee will submit its recommendations to the Superintendent. The Superintendent will consider the request of the Principal's Advisory Committee and make a recommendation to the Board. The final decision will rest with the Board.

7.19 MASTER SCHEDULE

Building principals will hold a voluntary department/grade level meeting for the purpose of receiving input with respect to master schedules.

7.20 STUDENTS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS

The Board recognizes the rights of regular and special area unit members to preserve the educational balance in their classrooms. When a student with special needs is placed into the regular classroom, the unit member will be given information of the student's academic, emotional, physical, or other problems. The following may be used by the unit members who have or will have one or more special needs students included into their classes:

- A. The receiving unit member, or any unit member, can request an IT meeting at any time to review the special needs of a student. This meeting will take place within ten (10) working days from the date of the request.
- B. Intergrade level meetings including support staff will be held at the end of the school year to provide necessary communication to next year's unit members concerning the needs of students having severe special needs.
- C. Whenever possible, the same educational aide will be assigned to a special needs student.
- D. Special unit members will be given the class assignments of their students as soon as they are determined in order to inform unit members about students' IEP and other learning problems.

- E. All staff who are involved with the student will be notified of initial placement meetings. The school psychologist will inform unit members of test results and arrange meetings with parents. Unit members need to know of these meetings at least five (5) working days before the meeting time, when possible.
- F. All parties will attempt to schedule IEP, IT, ETR, IAT, and Section 504 Plan conferences during the unit members' normal workday. The school psychologist or designated personnel will be responsible for scheduling all such meetings. With respect to any such conferences that cannot be scheduled within the normal workday, or any such conference during the normal workday that results in the loss of all or part of a unit member's planning time, the following shall apply.
 - 1. The parties will attempt to schedule the presence of any required regular classroom unit member, as opposed to special education unit member, during the first part of the conference, and such regular classroom unit member will be dismissed when his/her presence is no longer required.

7.21 LOCAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

- A. The LPDC shall be comprised of five (5) members. Three members will be unit members chosen by the FEA and the other two (2) will be appointed by the Superintendent. The Superintendent's appointees may include himself/herself and/or any other licensed/certificated educator.
- B. All members shall be issued a supplemental contract for \$1,500.00 per year. Payment will be made in three (3) equal installments on the second regular payday in October, the first regular payday in February, and the last regular payday in June.
- C. Each committee member shall be granted up to six (6) days' release time per year for appropriate LPDC training.
- D. The FEA, pursuant to its constitution, shall determine method(s) of recalling or replacing LPDC unit members.
- E. The Superintendent shall determine the recall and replacement of the non-teacher LPDC members.

7.22 COLLEGE CREDIT PLUS

In order to address the issues related to the College Credit Plus (CCP) program that affect terms and conditions of employment, the Board and Association agree to the following:

- 1. Teachers who teach CCP courses shall receive additional compensation of \$21 per student, up to a maximum of \$300 per class, per semester. Teachers who co-teach CCP courses with a college professor or instructor will receive 60% of the stated amounts.
- 2. The Board retains discretion in selecting the teachers who will teach CCP courses. The opportunity to teach any course offered by the Board through CCP will be offered to qualified bargaining unit members before the Board seeks outside employees. This provision

does not limit the Board's ability to contract for co-teaching arrangements with a college professor or instructor. A qualified teacher must respond in writing to the principal within five (5) work days after receiving an offer to teach a CCP course.

- 3. If a college or university requires in-service planning days for a teacher who teaches a CCP course, the Board will coordinate the scheduling of these days with the college/university, and the teacher will not be required to take a paid or unpaid leave of absence if planning is scheduled during the teacher work day.
- 4. In order to be eligible for the payments set forth in paragraph 1 above, a teacher may not be absent from a CCP class more than seven (7) times per semester.
- 5. Compensation shall be paid within thirty (30) days following the completion of the semester and upon submission of "Services Rendered" form to the treasurer.

ARTICLE VIII

OTHER PROVISIONS

8.01 CONFLICT WITH LAW

If any provision of this Agreement, or any application of the provisions of this Agreement, or any agreement reached under its terms, conflicts with Ohio or federal law, regulation, ruling or order, now or hereafter enacted or issued, such provisions, applications or agreement shall be inoperative but the remaining provisions herein shall remain in effect. In the event of any such conflict, the parties shall meet within thirty (30) days to attempt to negotiate a valid substitute to the invalid provision.

8.02 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals on any subject within the scope of bargaining. The understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of the right and opportunity are set forth herein, and the parties agree that this Agreement constitutes the entire contract between them and settles all demands and issues on all matters within the scope of bargaining.

All prior negotiated agreements not contained herein shall not be binding upon the parties.

8.03 DURATION

This Agreement shall become effective July 1, 2016, and shall remain in effect until midnight June 30, 2019.

FREDERICKTOWN EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

FREDERICKTOWN LOCAI BOARD OF EDUCATION

APPENDIX A

GRIEVANCE REPORT FORM

(To be Filed in Triplicate)

| Grievance # | Date Filed |
|-------------------|------------|
| Name of Aggrieved | |
| Building | Assignment |
| | |

STEP 2 (Submitted to Immediate Supervisor)

A. Date Cause of Grievance Occurred _____

- B. 1. Statement of Grievance (Cite specific article[s] and section[s] of the agreement.)
 - 2. Relief Sought

Signature of Aggrieved

B. Disposition of Supervisor

Date

Signature of Supervisor

Date

STEP 3 (Submitted to Superintendent)

Position of Aggrieved or Association A.

Signature of Aggrieved

Disposition by Superintendent or Designee B.

Signature of Superintendent or Designee

STEP 4 (Submitted to Board)

Position of Aggrieved or Association A.

Signature of Aggrieved

Disposition by Board Β.

Signature of Board President

Date

Date

Date

Date

APPENDIX B

FREDERICKTOWN LOCAL SCHOOLS

ASSAULT LEAVE

| Name | | Date | |
|---|----------|--------------------------|----|
| School | | | |
| Assault leave has been taken in accordance Assault Leave Policy of the Agreement bet Fredericktown Education Association. | | | |
| day(s) of assault leave was/v | vere tal | ken beginning at time | on |
| day / | | | |
| day month | | time | |
| day / month | _, 20 | <u> </u> | |
| The following information must be stated: | | | |
| Duration of Medical Attention | | | |
| Name of Physician | | | |
| Office Address | | | |
| Unit Member's Signature | | | |
| Principal | | | |
| | | | |
| Superintendent | | | |

APPENDIX C

PERSONAL LEAVE FORM

| Unit Member |
|---|
| Building |
| Date of Request |
| Day(s) and date(s) for which leave is requested |
| Personal leave is to be used in accordance with the following provisions: |
| Written request on the form, as herein incorporated, must be given to the principal for acknowledgement and to the Superintendent at least five (5) days prior to the requested date, except in emergencies. In emergency situations, the form shall be submitted as early as possible. |
| Personal leave shall be used in one-half $(1/2)$ or one (1) day increments. |
| Approved personal leave shall be at regular pay. |
| Personal leave may not be accumulated from year to year. |
| The personal leave shall require a signed certification that the leave will not be used for seeking or engaging in gainful employment. |
| Except in special circumstances, which must be explained in writing, personal leave shall not be used to extend a holiday or vacation period. |
| Personal leave will be approved provided that all provisions of this section have been met. |
| However, no more than five (5) percent of any building may use personal leave on a given day except by prior agreement when a position can be covered with a substitute. |
| I hereby certify that the above personal leave will be/was used for an appropriate reason. I understand that a violation of this certification of the use of personal leave for a reason prohibited by E of the personal leave section constitutes grounds for suspension or termination. |
| Unit Member's Signature |
| Principal's Acknowledgement |
| Superintendent's Signature |

Date

EXPLANATION OF FORMS

<u>Improvement Area Form</u>: This form can be used by the evaluator at any time during the school year. It is to be used by the evaluator when the evaluator wishes to document any area the evaluator feels needs to be improved.

Recommendations for improvement along with a time line must be listed when using this form. This form could be attached to the evaluation summary. More than one page can be used if needed. However, all pages must be signed.

IMPROVEMENT AREA FORM

DATE _____

SPECIFIC IMPROVEMENT TO BE MADE:

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR IMPROVEMENT:

TIME LINE:

SIGNATURES: Principal _____

Teacher ______(Signature denotes receipt of this form, not necessarily agreement.)

FREDERICKTOWN LOCAL SCHOOLS GUIDANCE COUNSELOR EVALUATION FORM HIGH SCHOOL

| NAME | DATE |
|-------|----------|
| INAME | DATE |

Data Sources (for example: conference, observation)

The proper use of these forms will assist the counselor and administrator in their analysis of performance behaviors and the development of prescriptive measures for the improvement of performance. It is understood that an "unsatisfactory" marking obliges the administrator to work with the counselor to improve performance in the designated area within an agreed upon period of time. Documentation of such improvement is required.

CODES

| S | = | Satisfactory | Meets or exceeds the district's expectations. |
|-----|---|-------------------|--|
| NI | = | Needs Improvement | Performance improvement is needed in this area. |
| U | = | Unsatisfactory | The performance does not meet the district's expectations and is unacceptable. |
| N/A | = | Not Applicable | Does not apply at this time. |

EVALUATION GUIDELINES

The appraisal on each standard is marked by placing an "X" in the appropriate box.

Comments are optional, but encouraged. If a standard is marked "unsatisfactory" or "needs improvement" appropriate comments shall be included.

FREDERICKTOWN LOCAL SCHOOLS **GUIDANCE COUNSELOR EVALUATION FORM HIGH SCHOOL**

PERFORMANCE RESPONSIBILITIES:

- Remains readily available to students to provide 1. counseling that will lead each student to increased personal growth, self-understanding, and maturity.
- Works with students on an individual basis in 2. the solution of personal or academic problems.
- 3. Works to resolve students' educational handicaps utilizing the IBA/IEP process.
- 4. Maintains student records and protects their confidentiality.
- 5. Organizes a planned program of individual and group counseling, group guidance instruction, staff consultation, parent consultation, staff information service, guidance resource service, and guidance research and evaluation service.
- 6. Is available for consultation on discipline, emotional and social problems of students.
- 7. Confers with parents whenever necessary.
- Works with community groups interested in 8. improving the total growth of our children.
- 9. Advises administrators and faculty on the matters of student problems/counseling.
- 10. Assists in the orientation of new faculty members regarding the guidance function.
- 11. Assists students in evaluating their aptitudes and abilities through the interpretation of individual standardized test scores and other pertinent data, and works with students in evolving education and occupation plans in terms of such evaluation. This will be done in cooperation with other staff members.

| S | NI | U | N/A | Comments |
|---|----|---|-----|----------|
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | - | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | - | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| - | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |

FREDERICKTOWN LOCAL SCHOOLS GUIDANCE COUNSELOR EVALUATION FORM HIGH SCHOOL

- 12. Obtains and disseminates occupational information to students and to classes studying occupations.
- 5. Helps students evaluate career interests and choices through the ICP (Individual Career Plan) process.
- 6. Plans guidance field trips to schools, colleges, and industry for interested students.
- 7. Aids students in course and subject selections.
- 16 Assists with student scheduling and makes all schedule changes in accordance with Board policy.
- 17. Assists in registering/scheduling students and orients them to school procedures and the school's varied opportunities for learning.
- 18. Works in cooperation with the High School principal and Career Center staff to facilitate the placement and education of district students enrolled in a Career Center.
- 19. Schedules all recruitment representatives of military and post-secondary institutions.
- 20. Assists in the preparation and processing of college, scholarship and employment applications when needed.
- 21. Makes recommendations to colleges for admissions and scholarships including post-secondary enrollment.
- 22. Arranges for home instruction tutors in cooperation with building principal.
- 23. Conducts student group guidance programming as needed.
- 24. Performs records check for majors, minors, and graduation requirements of all students.

| S | NI | U | N/A | Comments |
|---|----|---|-----|----------|
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | - | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| - | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |

FREDERICKTOWN LOCAL SCHOOLS GUIDANCE COUNSELOR EVALUATION FORM HIGH SCHOOL

- 25. Coordinates special education placement meetings and follows all state and federal regulations regarding special education.
- 26. Provides student information to colleges and potential employers according to provisions of the Board's policy on student records.
- 27. Is available to guide students in their participation in school activities.
- 28. Coordinates the administration of the district and students' testing with the building principal.
- 29. Works to prevent students from dropping out of school.
- 30. Utilizes effective verbal and written skills to interpret the school's objectives to students, parents, and the community at large.
- 31. Works in cooperation with other staff.
- 32. Communicates guidance activities and programs through appropriate media.
- 33. Abides by and observes all Board policies, administrative rules, directives, and procedures.
- 34. Performs other related duties under the supervision of the building administrator during the assigned working day.

| S | NI | U | N/A | Comments |
|---|----|---|-----|----------|
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |

FREDERICKTOWN LOCAL SCHOOLS GUIDANCE COUNSELOR EVALUATION FORM HIGH SCHOOL

Additional Comments by Evaluating Administrator:

Recommendations for Improvement with a Time Line:

Counselor Comments and Response:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The information contained herein has been read and discussed by those whose signatures appear below.

| Counselor | Dat | e |
|-----------------|-----|---|
| Administrator _ | Dat | e |

NAME _____ DATE _____

Data Sources (for example: conference, observation)

The proper use of these forms will assist the counselor and administrator in their analysis of performance behaviors and the development of prescriptive measures for the improvement of performance. It is understood that an "unsatisfactory" marking obliges the administrator to work with the counselor to improve performance in the designated area within an agreed upon period of time. Documentation of such improvement is required.

CODES

| S | = | Satisfactory | Meets or exceeds the district's expectations. |
|-----|---|-------------------|--|
| NI | = | Needs Improvement | Performance improvement is needed in this area. |
| U | = | Unsatisfactory | The performance does not meet the district's expectations and is unacceptable. |
| N/A | = | Not Applicable | Does not apply at this time. |

EVALUATION GUIDELINES

The appraisal on each standard is marked by placing an "X" in the appropriate box.

Comments are optional, but encouraged. If a standard is marked "unsatisfactory" or "needs improvement" appropriate comments shall be included.

PERFORMANCE RESPONSIBILITIES:

- 1. Remains readily available to students to provide counseling that will lead each student to increased personal growth, self-understanding, and maturity.
- 2. Works with students on an individual basis in the solution of personal or academic problems.
- 3. Works to resolve students' educational handicaps utilizing the IBA/IEP process and follows all state and federal regulations regarding special education.
- 4. Maintains student records and protects their confidentiality.
- 5. Coordinates activities and programs in the areas of substance abuse and prevention, sexual harassment, and conflict resolution.
- 6. Organizes a planned program of individual and group counseling, group guidance instruction, staff consultation, parent consultation, staff information service, guidance resource service, and guidance research and evaluation service
- 7. Is available for consultation on discipline, emotional and social problems of students.
- 8. Confers with parents whenever necessary.
- 9. Works with community groups interested in improving the total growth of our children.
- 10. Advises administrators and faculty on the matters of dealing with student problems.
- 11. Assists in the orientation of new faculty members regarding the guidance function.

| S | NI | U | N/A | Comments |
|---|----|---|-----|----------|
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | - | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |

- 12. Through the counseling role, assists students in evaluating their aptitudes and abilities through the interpretation of individual standardized test scores and other pertinent data, and works with students in evolving education and occupation plans in terms of such evaluation. This will be done in cooperation with other staff members.
- 13. Obtains and disseminates occupational information to students and to classes studying occupations.
- 14. Helps students evaluate career interests and choices through the ICP (Individual Career Plan) process.
- 15. Helps plan trips to schools and industry for interested students.
- 8. Aids students in course and subject selections.
- 17. Assists in registering/scheduling students and orients them to school procedures and the school's varied opportunities for learning.
- 18. Assists in arranging for home instruction tutors in cooperation with building principals.
- 19. Provides information to students in their participation in school/community activities.
- 20. Communicates guidance activities and programs through appropriate media.
- 21. Utilizes effective verbal and written skills to interpret the school's objectives to students, parents, and the community at large.
- 22. Abides by and observes all Board policies, administrative rules, directives, and procedures.
- 23. Performs other related duties under the supervision of the building administrator during the assigned working day.

| S | NI | U | N/A | Comments |
|---|----|---|-----|----------|
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |

Additional Comments by Evaluating Administrator:

Recommendations for Improvement with a Time Line:

Counselor Comments and Response:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The information contained herein has been read and discussed by those whose signatures appear below.

Counselor _____ Date _____

Administrator _____ Date _____

FREDERICKTOWN LOCAL SCHOOLS

2013-2016 SCHOOL YEARS REIMBURSEMENT FORM LOSS OF PREPARATION PERIOD

Please log the time of your missed preparation periods. In accordance with the negotiated agreement, you will be reimbursed for your time at \$17.00. Complete this form and return it to Superintendent on or before June 15 annually.

| Date | Start Time | End Time | Name of staff member not in attendance |
|------|---------------|-------------|---|
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |

Employee

Building Principal

Superintendent

FREDERICKTOWN LOCAL SCHOOLS

2013-2016 SCHOOL YEARS PROFESSIONAL MEETING REIMBURSEMENT FORM

Please log your time in attendance at IEP, MFE, IT, ETR, IAT, and 504 plan meetings. In accordance with the negotiated agreement, you will be reimbursed for your time in excess of six (6) hours at \$19.50 per hour. Complete this form and return it to Special Education Coordinator on or before June 15 annually.

| Date | Time (15 minute increments) | 504, IEP, IT, ETR, IAT, or MFE | Student's Name | Signature of Meeting Chair |
|------|-----------------------------------|---|----------------|-------------------------------|
| | | 1011.17 | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |

Employee

Special Education Coordinator

CONFERENCE OR WORKSHOP REQUEST FORM

INSTRUCTIONS: Submit to your building principal at least two weeks in advance of the conference or workshop. Attach appropriate requisitions to this form, if there will be reimbursable expenses.

| 1. | Staff member making request | _ |
|--------|---|----------------------------------|
| 2. | Date of request | |
| 3. | Conference or workshop you wish to attend | |
| 4. | Days you wish to attend | |
| 5. | Will we need to hire a substitute? Yes If yes, will a grant be covering the cost of your substitute? Yes If yes, explain Yes | _No No |
| 6. | Place of event | |
| | Estimated cost of conference or workshop: Registration \$(attach requisition) Mileage (reimbursed at IRS rate) miles (attach requisition) Meal Reimbursement – specify how many, if any, meals are requested: No. of breakfasts up to \$5.00 each = \$ No. of lunches up to \$10.00 each = \$ No. of dinners up to \$15.00 each = \$ No. of dinners up to \$15.00 each = \$ TOTAL \$ the above Meal Reimbursement provisions apply only if the conference or vector Mounty. If lodging is requested, attach requisition. | vorkshop is outside Knox |
| 8. | Indicate how this conference or workshop will improve you professionally ar teaching assignment or job targets. | |
| 9. | Upon returning I plan to share the information with my colleagues by: | |
| To rec | ceive reimbursement submit all receipts with a mileage reimbursement form to | building principal upon your |

Teacher's Signature

return from the conference/workshop.

Superintendent's Approval

Building Principal's Approval

Date

Date

APPLICATION FOR EDUCATIONAL ADVANCEMENT COSTS

| both to the Superintendent for a | pproval prior to the firs | | ting. |
|--|---|-------------|----------------------|
| Name | | | |
| Teaching Field | | | |
| College or University Attending | 5 | | |
| Dates of Attendance | | | |
| List Course or Courses to be Ta | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| *If more than 3 semester hours application that will be consider (Current year is considered class | red for reimbursement f s start dates between Ju | or extra ho | urs in October |
| | For Reimbursement | T | |
| Hours Semester I Semester II | | Hours | Semester II Extra |
| Date Application Received | | | |
| Approved | Disapproved | | |
| | Administr | ative Signa | ature |

Date Transcript Received Verifying Completion

Date of Payment

FREDERICKTOWN LOCAL SCHOOLS MEDICAL BENEFITS

| Plan Type | Network Benefits | Out-of-Network Benefits |
|--------------------------------|---------------------------------|------------------------------------|
| Waiting Period and Eligibility | Immediate | Immediate |
| | Spouse, children to 19 or 23 if | Spouse, children to 19 or 23 |
| Dependents covered | student | if student |
| | | |
| Deductible | \$200 with no cross application | \$500 with no cross application |
| Family Deductible | \$400 with no cross application | \$1,500 with no cross application |
| Out-of-Pocket Limits | \$600 per person and \$800 per | \$1,500 per person and \$3,000 per |
| (excl. deductible) | family | family with no cross application |
| Lifetime Benefits | \$1,000,000 | \$1,000,000 |
| Coinsurance Levels | 80% | 60% |
| | | |
| Pre-Admission Notification | Yes | Yes |
| Inpatient | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| Inpatient Mental | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| Nervous/Substance Abuse | limited to 30 days annually | limited to 20 days annually |
| | cross applied | cross applied |
| Surgery | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| Emergency Room Visit | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| | | |
| Physician Office Visit | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| Specialist Office Visit | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| | | |
| Diagnostic Lab & X-ray | 100% | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| Radiotherapy | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| Speech Therapy | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| | limited to 60 visits annually | limited to 15 visits annually |
| Outpatient Physical Therapy | cross applied | cross applied |
| Outpatient Inhalation Therapy | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| Chemotherapy | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | |
| Outpatient Cardiac | with \$1,000/yr. | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| | | |
| Outpatient Mental Nervous | unlimited | unlimited |
| | | |
| Outpatient Substance Abuse | unlimited | unlimited |
| Plan Type | Network Benefits | Out-of-Network Benefits |
| Outpatient Accident | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| Voluntary Sterilization | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | Not covered |
| | | |
| | | |

| Ambulance | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
|-------------------------------|------------------------------------|---------------------------------|
| | | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| | | limited to 50 visits annually |
| Home Health Care | 100% | cross applied |
| Durable Medical Equipment | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| Skilled Nursing Facility | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | Not covered |
| Hospice | 100% | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| | | 60% after ded., subject to OOPL |
| | | limited to 10 visits annually |
| Chiropractic Services | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | cross applied |
| Radial Keratotomy, Refractive | | |
| Keratoplasty & any other | | |
| procedure to correct | | |
| nearsightedness & | | |
| farsightedness | Not covered | Not covered |
| Abortion | 80% after ded., subject to OOPL | Not covered |
| Transgender | Not covered | Not covered |
| | | |
| Well Child Preventative | 80% after ded., \$500 limit to age | |
| | 1 and \$150 from age 1 to age 9 | Not covered |
| Adult Preventative Care | \$75 biennially | Not covered |
| Pap Smear, Mammogram, | | |
| Prostate Exam | Annually | Not covered |
| Prescription Drugs | \$20 / \$30 | \$20/ \$30 |
| Prescription Contraceptive | | |
| Coverage | | |

To be eligible, upon reemployment, for a continuing contract effective at the start of the next school year, a unit member must satisfy both the following service and professional credential/coursework requirements:

A. <u>Service Requirement</u>

By the end of the school year in which the unit member receives consideration for reemployment under a continuing contract, the employee (if continuing contract status has not previously been attained in a different Ohio public school district) must have taught in the Fredericktown District for at least three (3) of the last five (5) school years; if the unit member has previously attained continuing contract status in another Oho public school district, the employee must have served at least two (2) years in the Fredericktown District.

For this purpose, a "year" means actual regular (not including substitute) teaching service of not less than 120 days within a particular school year.

B. Credential/Coursework Requirement

By not later than April 1 of the school year in which the unit member receives consideration for reemployment under a continuing contract, effective at the start of the next school year, the employee must either:

- 1. Hold a valid professional, permanent, or life teacher's certificate issued by the Ohio Department of Education; or
- 2. Hold a valid professional educator license issued by the Ohio Department of Education and also has completed one of the following:
 - a. If the unit member did not hold a master's degree at the time of initially receiving a teacher's certificate (under former Ohio law) or an educator license, thirty (30) semester hours of coursework in the area of licensure or in an area related to the teaching field since the initial issuance of such certificate or license, as specified in State Board of Education rules;
 - b. If the unit member held a master's degree at the time of initially receiving a teacher's certificate (under former Ohio law) or an educator license, six (6) semester hours of graduate coursework in the area of licensure or in an area related to the teaching field since the initial issuance of such certificate or license, as specified in State Board of Education rules.

Should the legal requirements for continuing contract eligibility change, this Appendix shall be amended to reflect all such changes.

APPENDIX K

PRE-OBSERVATION CONFERENCE FORM

| Unit Member: | Date: |
|--------------------------|--------------|
| Program/Site: | Time Period: |
| Grade(s)/Subject/Lesson: | |

Please be prepared to discuss the following questions:

1. Briefly describe important aspects of the learning environment that the observer needs to know in advance: student situations, developmental processes, etc.

2. What are your objectives for this lesson?

3. What do you want students to learn or to do by the end of this lesson/unit?

4. How did you determine that this is what these students need to learn?

5. How will you assess student learning? How will you know students have achieved the outcomes you intended?

6. What activities will your students be doing?

7. How does this lesson relate to instruction that has occurred over the last few weeks/months?

Comments:

NOTES: